e

0COC ang'Hingﬂimiréd
#li%?hﬁm

- (Incorporated in the Cm/nm dslands with (imited (iability
tek-continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

Wit B i (riE 2 BRRAEL)
(P L /\{J(b‘/b 428)

N,N\U\A



This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is
available on the Company’s website at www.cocoon.holdings (the
“Company Website”).

Shareholders who have chosen or have been deemed consented
to receive the corporate communications of the Company (the
“Corporate Communications”) via the Company Website and who
for any reason have difficulty in receiving or gaining access to the
annual report posted on the Company Website will promptly upon
request be sent the annual report in printed form free of charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of the means
of receipt (either in printed form or via the Company Website)
and/or language(s) (either English only or Chinese only or both
languages) of Corporate Communications.

Shareholders may send their request to receive the annual report
in printed form, and/or to change their choice of the means of
receipt and/or language(s) of Corporate Communications by notice
in writing to the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong or by sending an email to the branch share registrar
of the Company in Hong Kong at cocoon.ecom@computershare.com.hk.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive printed copy of the
Corporate Communications in either English or Chinese version
will receive both English and Chinese versions of this annual
report since both languages are bound together into one booklet.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®E

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) takes pleasure in
presenting the audited consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (“Reporting Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW, PROSPECTS AND FUTURE
PLAN

The year 2023 was quite a volatile year for investing in the
listed securities both Hong Kong, the People’s of the Republic
of China (the “PRC”) and United States of America (the “US”).
In 2023, both the Hong Kong stock market and the PRC stock
market experienced a continuation of vulnerabilities.

The market rallied in early January 2023 as Hong Kong
opened its border with the PRC, reaching its 2023 high of
22,688.9 on January 2023. Since then, interest rate hikes and a
sluggish PRC’s economy have dealt it a double blow. The Hang
Seng Index fell 14% in 2023. Hong Kong’s stock market, which
includes shares of many Chinese companies, one of the reasons
for the unfavorable performance of Hong Kong’s stock market was
disappointment in PRC post-COVID recovery.

As the US Federal Reserve raised interest rates further
in 2023, Hong Kong’s interest rates also gradually increased,
dragging down the total fixed capital formation, which reflects
investment. With the US interest rate remaining at a high level
and the US currency strengthening, it triggered a capital outflow
from the Hong Kong stock market, which also affected the Hong
Kong stock market and even the overall economy.

The Group expects the stock market and economy of
the PRC and Hong Kong will continue to struggle between
continuation of uncertainty in 2023. The PRC is the top principal
trading partner of Hong Kong, so its economy will definitely affect
the Hong Kong’s economy.

The Group will closely monitor the development of the
external environment and continue to evaluate its impact on our
business, financial position and operating results.
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Looking ahead to the year 2024, the Company will stay
in focus to invest in trading securities, private equity funds and
private enterprises with potential prospect. Our approach will keep
timely and appropriate investment strategies in response to the
volatile market, in order to enhance our investment portfolio and
achieve net asset appreciation. The Board will pay close attention
to the macro trends and keep seeking opportunities to invest in
China, Hong Kong and overseas. The Company will continue
to implement its risk management policy with an aim to achieve
stable returns on investments for our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Lastly, | would like to thank our dedicated employees for
their invaluable contributions and enthusiasm in their work. Their
zeal in discharging duties and responsibilities will ensure the
success of our Group.

Chau Wai Hing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s revenue for the Reporting Period comprised
dividend income, interest earned from bank deposits and loans
and receivables. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$1,399,000 as
compared to approximately HK$4,552,000 in the prior year,
representing a decrease of approximately 69.3%. The decrease
in revenue was mainly due to decrease of interest income
during the Reporting Period. Gross proceeds from disposals
of trading securities for the Reporting Period was recorded of
approximately HK$62,032,000 as compared to approximately
HK$8,880,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
Group recorded a realised gain of approximately HK$251,000
(2022: loss of approximately HK$1,168,000) and fair value gain
of approximately HK$54,869,000 (2022: loss of approximately
HK$37,578,000) on listed securities held by the Group during
the Reporting Period. The Group recorded a net realised gain
of approximately HK$3,336,000 (2022: loss of approximately
HK$5,783,000) on disposals of a loan note. During the Reporting
Period, no impairment loss of deposits and other receivables
were recognised (2022: nil). With the favourable performance of
certain publicly traded securities held by the Group and fair value
gain of certain unlisted securities during the Reporting Period,
the Group recorded gain attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$53,505,000 as compared to a loss of
approximately HK$48,079,000 in prior year.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s unlisted investments
(comprised of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
and loans receivables) were approximately HK$42,346,000 (2022:
HK$98,858,000). Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
was approximately HK$338,000 (2022: HK$791,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the net assets of the Group
were approximately HK$186,246,000 (2022: HK$118,301,000).
The net assets increased 57.43% when compared to prior year.
The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss increased
from approximately HK$54,202,000 as at 31 December 2022 to
approximately HK$172,306,000 as at 31 December 2023 and the
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
of approximately HK$22,241,000 (2022: HK$24,903,000) was as
at 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had available funds of
approximately HK$8,137,000 which were mainly placed in banks
and licensed securities firms as general working capital. Bank
balances and cash balance in licensed securities firms held by
the Group were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group had shareholders’ funds of approximately
HK$186,246,000 at 31 December 2023 compared to
HK$118,301,000 at 31 December 2022, representing an increase
of approximately 57.43%.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had borrowings of
approximately HK$14,335,000 (2022: HK$14,162,000). The
gearing ratio for the Group was 7.70% (2022: 11.97%) which
represents the ratio of the Group’s borrowings to the net asset
value of the Group.

The Group did not have any capital expenditure commitment
as at 31 December 2023.

During the Reporting Period, no share option was granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the share option scheme,
adopted by the Company at annual general meeting on 17 June
2022.

Fund raising activity

Save as the placing of new shares as disclosed in note 28
to the consolidation financial statements and under the heading of
“Placing of New Shares” below, there was no significant change
in the Group’s capital structure for the Reporting Period.

Placing of New Shares

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 26 June 2023 and 14 July 2023, respectively (the
“Announcements”) in relation to, amongst others, the Placing.
Unless otherwise defined, capitalised terms used herein shall
have the same meanings as those defined in the Announcements.

After trading hours on 26 June 2023, the Company and
Sorrento Securities Limited entered into the Placing Agreement
pursuant to which the Company has appointed the Placing Agent
to procure, on a best efforts basis, placees to subscribe for up to
86,334,444 new shares at a price of HK$0.200 per Placing Share.
The gross proceeds from the Placing were approximately HK$17.3
million and the net proceeds were approximately HK$17.1 million.
It was intended that the net proceeds from the Placing would be
utilised for investment in the listed and/or unlisted securities in the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$7.1 million, repayment of
short term loan and payment of interest in the aggregate amount
of approximately HK$4.5 million and the remaining balance would
be used as the Group’s general working capital.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRR DN

Details of the Placing, Placing Agreement were set out in
the Announcements.

As at the date of this report, detailed breakdown and
description of the utilisation of the net proceeds from the placing
under general mandate completed on 19 July 2022 and the
Placing were as follows:

The unutilised proceed

Date of announcement Event as at 31 December 2022
R-E--_#+-A=t+-H
=R £ RBAMBRE

13 June 2022
(completed on
19 July 2022)

Placing new shares
under general mandate

Approximately HK$2.0 million

“E-EXATZE RE-REEEETRD #208881
(R=ZB==%F
TtATNBRER)

8 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED # B XS #ZRAER L T

REFHE EEHAFRIARNKEFL

i e

BEAREAHM RER-_ZE__F+H+AN

B SERCE) — AR M T
M E EEARE K

Intended use of net proceeds
(Note 2)
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(ii)

Approximately HK$0.9
million for repayment
of short term loan and
payment of interest

Approximately HK$1.1
million for general
working capital of the
Group
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Actual use of proceeds

%
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Approximately HK$0.9
million was used to repay
short term loan

Approximately HK$1.1
million was used for
operating expenses
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM

Actual use of proceeds and
expected timeline for fully

Date of announcement Event

AFEH

26 June 2023
(completed on
14 July 2023)

ES

Placing new shares
under general
mandate

Net proceed raised
ESFMBNERE

Approximately
HK$17.1 million

Intended use of net proceeds

FERAFERERE

(i)

(i)

—E-=#& RE-—REEREHK MM7188ET (i)
NA=tAE Z
(RZZZ=F (i)
. ii
TA+TMBRK)
(iii)
Notes:
1 The expected timetable for fully utilising the unutilised net proceeds

is determined based on the Group’s best estimate of future market

conditions, and is subject to change depending on current market

conditions and future market developments.

2 Details of the placing under general mandate completed on 19 July

2022 were set out in the announcements of the Company dated 13

June 2022, 4 July 2022 and 19 July 2022.

Approximately HK$7.1
million for the investment
in listed and/or unlisted
securities

Approximately HK$4.5
million for repayment
of short term loan and
payment of interest

Approximately HK$5.5
million for general working
capital of the Group
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utilising the unutilising amount
(Note 1)
FEREERARUARBHEAR
AERFRRBRRER (WiE1)

(

=

(iii)

(if)

Approximately HK$7.1 million
was used to invest in listed
securities

Approximately HK$0.1
million was used to repay
short term loan, the balance
approximately HK$4.4 million
would utilised as intended on
or before 31 December 2024

Approximately HK$2.5 million
was used for operating
expenses and the balance
approximately HK$3.0 million
would utilised as intended on
or before 30 June 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBNWmRDMN

INVESTMENT REVIEW

The Company is an investment company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) under Chapter 21 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the Group is principally engaged in investments in securities
listed on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted investments
with potential for earning growth and capital appreciation. It is
the corporate strategy of the Group to strengthen its existing
businesses and continue its focus on financing future investment
opportunities domestically and internationally to achieve financial
growth for the Group and to maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Company held fourteen investments as of 31 December
2023, comprising twelve equity securities listed in Hong Kong
and the US, one item of interests in a private entity in Anguilla
and one item of interests in a private entity in the U.S.. Pursuant
to the requirements stipulated in Rule 21.12 of the Listing
Rules, the Company discloses its ten largest investments and all
individual investments with value exceeding 5% of the Company’s
gross assets with brief description of the investee companies
are provided in the notes 21 to 23 to the consolidated financial
statements of this report and the section under “significant
investments held and their performance” below.

Significant investments held and their performance

Details of the performance of the significant investments
held by the Group as at 31 December 2023 were disclosed under
the heading of “Financial Review” above and in notes 21 to 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The ten largest investments and all individual investments
with value exceeding 5% of the Company’s gross assets as at 31
December 2023 with brief description of the investee companies
as follows and as disclosed in notes 21 to 23 to the consolidated
financial statements:

Private Equity Investment — Perfect Path Limited (“Perfect
Path”)

Perfect Path is a private entity incorporated in Anguilla,
which principally engaged in gold mining business. The Group
held 20% of equity interest of Perfect Path, despite the Group
held 20% of the voting power in Perfect Path, however, under
contractual arrangements the Group has no significant influence
over Perfect Path, another single shareholder control the
composition of the board of directors and have control over
Perfect Path. Perfect Path indirectly owns 45% interest in a
gold mine in Thailand (the “Gold Mine”). According to Perfect
Path, all relevant application documents for obtaining the Gold
Mine licences and permits were submitted to the relevant local
government authorities in Thailand, as the relevant application is
still in process, Perfect Path not deployed their business and no
income generated during the year ended 31 December 2023. Due
to the COVID-19 pandemic has raged in much of the world since
early 2020, including Thailand, after having taken into account
all relevant factors and vigilantly verified it with Perfect Path,
the shareholders of Perfect Path had reached the consensus, to
proactively approach potential buyer in realising the investment of
the gold mine development so benefited by the increasing of gold
price these years so that alternative investment opportunities can
be identified to reduce investment risk due to uncertainties.

Private Equity Investment — LNPR Group Inc. (‘LNPR”)

LNPR is a private entity incorporated in the US, which is
principally engaged in development of a “Pure Play” renewable/
alternative/distributed energy technology solutions and wastes to
resources and energy platforms.. The Group held 7.02% equity
interest of LNPR. According to LNPR, they are seeking listing on
Nasdaq and already submitted the application to the authority in
the US. The Board was of the view that having equity interest in
LNPR is benefit from listing on OTC market successfully.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Listed Equity Investment — Tencent (Holdings) Limited
(“Tencent’)

Tencent is a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands (stock code: 700). Tencent is principally engaged in
the provision of value-added services, financial technology and
business services and online advertising services. Based on
the latest published quarterly report for the nine months ended
30 September 2023 of Tencent, the net profit for the period was
approximately RMB90,198 million comparing with the net profit
for the same period last year was approximately RMB81,805
million. The increase of net profit of Tencent was mainly due to
the increase in share of profit of associates and joint ventures.
The equity attributable to equity holders of Tencent as at 30
September 2023 was approximately RMB768,514 million. Net
dividend (after expenses) approximately HK$0.6 million was
received from Tencent during the year ended 31 December
2023 (31 December 2022: HK$0.2 million), including dividend
in the form of a distribution in specie of Meituan (stock code:
3690), equivalent to the market price of Meituan approximately
HK$566,000 as at the distribution date. The Board believed the
leading position of Tencent in the market can make them to enjoy
the prosperity of internet industry, the Group treats the investment
in Tencent as the long term.

Listed Equity Investment — Winchester Holding Limited
(“Winchester”)

Winchester is a company incorporated in the US (OTC Pink:
WCHS) which is listing on OTC market in the US. Winchester is
manufacturing of cars in South Africa for production. Based on
the latest unaudited financial statements for the nine months
ended 30 September 2023, the net loss was approximately
US$17,000. The net assets of Winchester as at 30 September
2023 was approximately US$19,000. No dividend was received
from Winchester during the year ended 31 December 2023
(31 December 2022: nil). The Board believed Winchester is
concentrated on the manufacture of cars in South Africa for
production is a catalyst of Winchester. The Group would hold the
investment in Winchester and closely monitor its performance and
may adjust the portfolio of Winchester from time to time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Listed Equity Investment — Alibaba Group Holding Limited
(“Alibaba’)

Alibaba is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
(stock code: 9988). Alibaba is principally engaged in online retail
platform, cloud computing, digital media and entertainment. Based
on the latest published interim report for the six months ended
30 September 2023 of Alibaba, the net income for the period was
approximately RMB59,696 million comparing with the net loss for
the corresponding period was approximately RMB2,169 million.
No dividend was received from Alibaba during the Reporting
Period (2022: N/A). The Board believed the leading position of
Alibaba in the market can make them to enjoy the prosperity of
internet industry, the Group would hold the investment in Alibaba
and closely monitor its performance and may adjust the portfolio
of Alibaba from time to time.

Listed Equity Investment — Readen Holding Corporation
(‘RHCO”)

RHCO is a company incorporated in the US (OTC Pink:
RHCO) which is listing on OTC market in the US. RHCO is a
venture capital corporation which is active in the Fintech, Online
Payment and E-commerce industries. RHCO has growth engines
which are projected to have significant growth on the revenue
in coming years as the business becomes mature. Based on
the latest unaudited financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2023, the net income was approximately US$2.2 million.
The total stockholders’ equity of RHCO as at 30 June 2023
was approximately US$6.9 million. No dividend was received
from RHCO during the Reporting Period (2022: nil). The Board
expects RHCO has growth engines making positive to its financial
performance. The Group would closely monitor its performance
and may adjust the portfolio of RHCO timely.

Listed Equity Investment — Sante Technology Holdings Inc.
(“'SNTE”)

SNTE is a company incorporated in the US (OTC Pink:
SNTE) which is listing on OTC market in the US which intend to
acquire and merger potential Al technology related companies by
offering the a unique platform with technology function, marketing
function, finance function and resources integration function.
No dividend was received from SNTE during the year ended 31
December 2023 (31 December 2022: N/A). The Board believed
artificial intelligence business is a future trend.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Listed Equity Investment — BYD Company Limited (“‘BYD”)

BYD is a company incorporated in the PRC (stock code:
1211). BYD is a PRC-based company principally engaged in the
manufacture and sales of transportation equipment. BYD is also
engaged in the manufacture and sales of electronic parts and
components and electronic devices for daily use. BYD’s products
include rechargeable batteries and photovoltaic products, mobile
phone parts and assembly, and automobiles and related products.
BYD mainly conducts its businesses in the PRC, the US and
Europe. Based on the latest published third quarter report for the
nine months ended 30 September 2023 of BYD, the revenue for
the period was approximately RMB162,150.7 million, the net profit
attributable to shareholders for the period was RMB10,412.8
million. Net dividend (after expenses) approximately HK$35,000
was received from BYD during the Reporting Period (31
December 2022: N/A). The Board believed the leading position of
BYD in the market can make them to enjoy the growth of market
demand, the Group would hold the investment in BYD and closely
monitor its performance and may adjust the portfolio of BYD from
time to time.

Listed Equity Investment — CMOC Group Limited* (‘CMOC”)

CMOC is a company incorporated in the PRC (stock code:
3993). CMOC is a PRC-based company mainly engaged in
the mining, smelting, processing and trading of molybdenum,
tungsten, copper and other metals. CMOC operates through six
segments. The Molybdenum and Tungsten Related Products
segment is engaged in the mining of molybdenum and tungsten
ore. The Copper and Gold Related Products segment is engaged
in the mining of copper and gold. The Niobium and Phosphate
Related Products segment is mainly engaged in the production
of niobium and phosphate fertilizers. The Copper and Cobalt
Related Products segment is engaged in the production of
copper and cobalt. The Metals Trading segment is principally
engaged in the sales of metals. The Other segment is mainly
engaged in mining support business. Based on the latest
published third quarterly financial report for the nine ended 30
September 2023 of CMOC, the operating income for the period
was approximately RMB44,956.0 million, the net profit attributable
to the shareholders of the CMOC for the nine months ended 30
September 2023 was RMB1,740.0 million. Net dividend (after
expenses) approximately HK$43,000 was received from CMOC
during the Reporting Period (31 December 2022: N/A). The Group
would hold the investment in CMOC and closely monitor its
performance and may adjust the portfolio of CMOC from time to
time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Listed Equity Investment — Luduson G Inc. (“LDSN”)

LDSN is a company incorporated in the US (OTC QB:
LDSN) which is listing on OTC market in the US which is engaged
in the business of building and fostering relationships between
leading influencers and brands. LDSN focuses on identifying and
partnering with top influencers across a range of industries and
social media platforms, through partnering with movie studios and
online ecosystems and production companies to promote their
films through its influencer network, with the aim of eventually
producing such movies in-house. Other businesses of LDSN
include influencer management, commercial film production, and
online ecosystem development. Overall, LDSN provides a unified
entertainment universe for the PRC market, Asia market, and all
overseas Chinese around the world. No dividend was received
from LDSN during the Reporting Period (31 December 2022: N/A).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a total of
2 full-time employees (2022: 2 full-time employees), including
the executive Directors. Employees’ remuneration are fixed and
determined with reference to the market remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Company for non-executive
Directors is to ensure that they are sufficiently compensated
for their efforts and time dedicated to the Company and that
for the employees, including the executive Directors and senior
management, is to ensure that the remuneration offered is
appropriate for the duties and in line with market practice.
The remuneration policy is to ensure that the pay levels are
competitive and effective in attracting, retaining and motivating
employees. No Director, or any of his associates, or executive is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The key components of the Company’s remuneration
package include basic salary plus other allowances, discretionary
cash bonus and mandatory provident fund. As a long-term
incentive plan and with the aim at motivating employees in the
continued pursuit of the Company’s goal and objectives, the
Company may grant share options to subscribe for shares of the
Company to the employees (including Directors) of the Company
based on their performance and contribution to the Company
under the Company’s share option scheme (if any).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EXPOSURES TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group has no significant exposures to fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates and, therefore, did not employ any
financial instruments to hedge such exposures.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, no asset was pledge by the
Group.

MAJOR ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any major acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have
other plan for material investments or acquisition of material
capital assets as at 31 December 2023.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company have no capital commitments as at 31
December 2023 (31 December 2022: nil).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is principally engaged in the provision
of investment service in securities listed on recognised stock and
exchanges and unlisted investments with potential for earning
growth and capital appreciation. This Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”, “Report”) summaries the
Group’s environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) initiatives,
plans and performances and demonstrates its commitment to
sustainable development. The ESG Report specifies the ESG
activities, challenges, performance, and measures taken by
the Group during the financial year ended 31 December 2023
(“Reporting Period”, “Year”, “FY2023").

Reporting Boundary

The ESG Report covers the core business activities of the
Group in Hong Kong. ESG data of the Group’s direct operational
control is gathered and reported in this ESG Report.

Reporting Framework & Principles

This ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with
all the applicable provisions as set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) under the Appendix C2 of the Main Board Listing Rules.
The Group has applied the following reporting principles for
preparation of this ESG Report:

“Materiality”: The materiality assessment was conducted
to identity material ESG issues during the Reporting Period,
thereby adopting the confirmed material ESG topics as the focus
for the preparation of the ESG Report. Material ESG issues were
reviewed and confirmed by internal and external stakeholder
engagement.

“Quantitative”: Quantitative data with supplementary notes
are used for KPI disclosure to represent a measurable result and
to explain the standards, methodologies, and source of conversion
factors used during the calculation emissions and energy
consumption.

“Consistency”: The preparation approach of this ESG
Report is substantially consistent with methodologies applied in
previous year, and explanations are provided regarding changes
in reporting boundary.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BE #HERERARS

Forward-looking Statements

This Report contains forward-looking statements which are
based on the current expectations, estimates, projections, beliefs,
and assumptions of the Company about the businesses and the
markets in which it and its subsidiaries operate. These forward-
looking statements are not guarantees of future performance
and are subject to market risk, uncertainties, and factors beyond
the control of the Company. Therefore, actual outcomes and
returns may differ materially from the assumptions made and the
statements contained in this Report.

Approval and Confirmation

Information included in the Report was sourced from the
official documents and statistical data of the Group. The Report
has been reviewed and approved by the Board.

Contact Us

Should you have any enquiry on this ESG Report, please
kindly contact us by email cs@cocoon.holdings.

THE GROUP SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND
VISION

Sustainable Mission

The Group is focusing to unlock the value of emerging
companies in China, Hong Kong, and overseas by directly
investing in emerging private and listed companies in China, Hong
Kong, and overseas, with the emphasis on those high-growth
companies focusing on domestic market.

Vision on ESG

The Group understands that it is important to build up
strong corporate governance to attract investment, protecting
the rights of shareholders and stakeholders, and enhancing
shareholder value. The Group is committed to accounting for its
shareholders with a highly transparent and open attitude, holding
a high standard in business ethics and invests in sustainable
businesses, and improving the quality of the communities and the
environment, providing long-term returns to its stakeholders.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG Management Strategies and the Board Statement
Oversight of ESG Issues

The board of directors (the “Board”) holds the ultimate
responsibility on monitoring the Group’s ESG issues, including
ESG management approach, strategy, and policies. To better
manage the Group’s ESG performance and identify potential risks,
the Board conducts materiality assessment where necessary
with the assistance of the ESG Taskforce (the “Taskforce”)
to evaluate and prioritise material ESG-related issues with
reference to the opinions of our stakeholders. The Board sets
up a general direction for the Group’s ESG strategies, ensuring
the effectiveness in the control of ESG risks and internal control
mechanisms.

The ESG Taskforce

The Group has established the ESG Taskforce. The
Taskforce comprises all members of the management team of the
Group and is responsible for collecting relevant information on its
ESG aspects for preparing the Report. The Taskforce reports to
the Board, assists in identifying and evaluating the Group’s ESG
risks and the effectiveness of the internal control mechanisms
and reviews the progress of the set ESG goals and targets. The
Taskforce also examines and evaluates the Group’s performances
in different aspects such as environment, health and safety, labour
standards and product responsibilities in the ESG aspects. The
Taskforce is responsible for collecting and analyzing ESG data,
monitoring and evaluating the Group’s ESG performance, ensuring
compliance with ESG-related laws and regulations, and preparing
ESG reports. The Taskforce discusses the existing and upcoming
plans to monitor and manage the Group’s strategic goals in terms
of sustainable development, mitigate potential risks, and minimize
their negative impacts on business operations.
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BE #HERERARS

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values stakeholder engagement and feedback
on the Group business development. To improve communication
with our major stakeholders, multi-channel interaction with
the stakeholders was established, as a proactive approach
to continuously interact with key stakeholder groups for their
feedback. The key stakeholder groups include but not limited
to the Stock Exchange, government and regulatory authorities,
shareholders and investors, employees, customers, suppliers,
media and the public and the community. Diverse communication
channels are listed as below:

Stakeholders Communication Channels
FHE BARE
The Stock Exchange The Stock Exchange website
Written or electronic correspondences
Bt 32 F gk 32 Pt 408 3
EHEEFBA
Government and Written or electronic correspondences
Regulatory Authorities Visits and government inspections
B REEHE EHEE TR
7 B R AR 5=
Shareholders and General meeting and other shareholder
Investors meetings

Annual reports
Announcements and circulars

BRERREE BREARGREMKRERAS
4 4R
NE KR K
Employees Training
Internal meeting
= = ol
W& &
Customers Customer service
Client meetings
®FE B RS
BFP g
Suppliers Business meetings and discussion
e S e M R
Media, Public & ESG Report
Community Annual Report

Community activities
Charitable donations

R ABRRHE RE HE@RERMRE
F
A 18 % B
BEER
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AEEERKNELAREAREXRBERN

REE-RRERGERIBEHNENBER RMBLT 8
MENZRELS BEEBMTEEEZRHGEH
BETEPUEBSRENRE - TEHNEHEER
BERARRBRA BAREE#E RRMREE &

i

i

BEE HER - -HE AREREE-ZHELNER
BYRAT :

Expectations

HE

Compliance with Listing Rules and other
relevant Ordinances
#<F AR Bl K E A A8 B 6k 171

Compliance with local laws and regulations
Support for local economic growth

BT E AR KRB

R MR B IE R

Investment return
Corporate governance
Business compliance

K& O &
©EER
XBaR

Remuneration, compensation, and benefits
Career development

B - R K A2 A

BRER

Customer privacy

Business ethic and integrity
BEFE BT

R ERMHIE

Fair and open procurement
Relationship

YN BN R

EZRES

Transparency
Corporate governance
Active participation to community development

BRE
©EEER
iR 2 B %R
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group’s ESG Taskforce has participated in the
preparation of the Report to assist the Group in reviewing its
operations and identifying relevant ESG issues and assessing
the importance of related issues to the Group’s businesses and
stakeholders. Material assessment has been conducted to identify
the issues. The following matrix is a summary of the Group’s
material ESG topics included in this Report:

RiR HERERERSE

EEMFMG

AEBENRE HERERTFENE2HAREH
AE U AEERTEERBERIRNRE HE
RErmAfEER YHEABZEHARERE R
FOENEEL BETEZUEFGEBNZFHE -
NTREESABEMEAREANERNRE HERE
Aéﬂéﬁg

Materiality Matrix

EEMER

High
=
A Occupational Health and Safety Data Privacy Erotectign Responsible Investment
BERFEEre BURRALIRE \ﬁf—m@&ﬁ
Recruitment, Promotion and IR’Emuneration ‘
" REE - BT R E A
S
() .
o . . Safeguard Client Assets
- Community Participation P o
-g zaiﬂ][ i@ Development and TraTTg e FEEEEE
W " e BR R
g z KRR =)
= 2 Technology Innovation Labour Standards
o Use of Resources AT B3R
c ® BIR{E -
.\
o i
"{é = Emissions CI|mate Change
3 s
g_ HeRey Anti-corruption RIREML
= S E=V&]
Indoor Air Quality
Supply Chaln Management iy Al
1 M_Ei e ES W 2 ﬂr’zﬁr =21
Waste Management —
REEYER \.
> High
Low Impact on Business B
& HEBNEZE
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BE #HERERARS

ENVIRONMENTAL

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is devoted
to contributing efforts for the decarbonisation target, by taking
responsive measures such as energy efficiency actions.
Sustainability is integrated into business strategy development,
with the aim to minimise carbon footprint and strengthen the
resilience to climate-related risks.

THE GROUP’S ESG TARGETS

To support global efforts to address climate change and
to facilitate the assessment of the effectiveness of the Group’s
strategies and measures to mitigate the impacts of climate
change, environmental objectives are set at the Group level as
below in 2021. The Group is committed to achieving our ESG
targets. These targets encompass reducing pollutant emissions
and resource consumption.

Environmental Target 2024, using 2021 as baseline.

Electricity consumption Intensity

AEBRE EEBEYRE
| 5% (achieved) | 5% (achieved)
5% (EER) | 5% (EER)

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to air and
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions, discharges into water and
land, and the generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
that would have a significant impact on the Group, including but
are not limited to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance and the
Waste Disposal Ordinance.
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Non-hazardous waste Intensity

T

ER—EEEENCELR AEBEBRIRNE
BERDIESEBRYESEEEE SERRRKERE
HE N - AIFBEREMNAEBEBERY BEEX
R BR JE #th R A % & B - 0058 % S5k 1 48 B 2 B ) 1K 2
hoe

FEBEHNRE HERERER
RIXFEHREHRERB(LNE R EF[HAR
SERERRELCTENRBEREBEEORY AEH
EER_FT-_—FREMNTRFEAZ - AEBH AR
EREMNRE HERERBEBR -ZFEFEREHHE
DISEMPER R BIRERE -

R _NFREEE WERA S —F%A
Higo

Greenhouse gas emissions Intensity

BERBHERAE

| 5% (achieved)
| 5% (BER)

RAFEZERN AEBEIW B A BERK
AEREB(DREREDHFR - FREKRR L AR
EXAERBEERERYNERNERRERZRERTRE
HBAKBELAEAYE BRETRR(ZERSRE
HEB) K CEEWERE &P



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

A1. EMISSIONS
Air Emissions

Since the Company did not have either town fuel and town
gas consumption or emission of motor vehicles during the Year.
Therefore, no emissions data was applied.

GHG Emissions

A major source of GHG emissions of the Group is the
consumption of electricity at the office due to its office-based
operation. As the Group does not own or operate any machinery
and vehicles to generate fossil fuel consumption such as
petrol and diesel, no Scope 1 direct GHG emission has been
recorded. Scope 2 indirect GHG emissions are generated by the
consumption of purchased electricity.

Details of GHG emissions performance are represented
below:

Indicator(s) EE

Scope 1 — Direct GHG Emission HE1 —EEBEEREHR

RiR HERERERSE

A1l. BEY
BRIEN

BMRARARANEE AL ERBRE RERHE
FESEE BN M A A BE DR -

BERBHER

HRAAEBEERRAERE BAZAERE
ERBHMNEIERFE - ARNANEEL EHEA KR
R HER R E AUl RERF AR ERNER
e 3 M AC R E0 E1 B OB R AP - S E2R KA
EREBHRIIBINEE N HREL -

BERBHFBRRAFBUOTAR:

Unit 2023 2022
By —E—-= ===
tCO,e N/A N/A

MR — S b E 2 EA 5 A
Scope 2 — Indirect GHG Emission  # &2 — MR EREHN tCO,e 1.80 2.31
ME—S{LiE 2
Scope 3 — Other Indirect GHG HE3 —Efth R = REBHEK tCO,e 1.22 2.05
Emissions R E R 5 B B A R 4R W= Sfbiite 8
Total GHG Emissions BERBHNEE tCO,e 3.01 4.35
W= &k & =
GHG Emission Intensity EREEBENRE tCO,e/mil rev 0.08 0.32
M — &L E &
ER-ON
Notes: Bt -
. GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide

equivalent and is based on, but no limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas
Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued
by the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG report-Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange, the Sustainability Report 2022 issued by Hong Kong
Electric.

. tCO.,e is defined as tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent.

. BRERBHERBBEA—_SMHREBZN WER (ER
BROERERARMARERATKERRIFEES
e CRERBBEATE  CESHEARSFTE) -
B PR (A REIRE HE REARE MW
5= RFEMRABERBERES) RBREEMN (=
T _FAKEBRRE) o

. tCOe EEABM_ALHEE
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BE #HERERARS

. During the Year, the Group recorded a revenue and gross proceed
of approximately HK$40 million (2022: HK$13.5 million). The data is

also used for calculating other intensity data.

Sewage Discharge

The sewage discharge into land is insignificant due to the
Group business nature. During the Reporting Period, there was no
significant amount of sewage water discharged. Used water was
discharged to the municipal sewage network to the regional water
treatment plant.

Waste Management

The Group does not generate hazardous waste due to its
business nature and office-based operation. Non-hazardous waste
was mainly paper waste generated from office operation. Although
the Group expects that the impact of non-hazardous waste will
be insignificant, paper-saving initiatives are implemented as
responsive measures for the decarbonisation target of the Group.

Paper consumption involves extensive tree removals,
which intensifies the magnitude of impact caused by global
warming. The Group is committed to creating a paperless working
environment at office for environmental conservation. The ESG
target is achieved by reducing paper consumption and recycling
of paper. The Group has implemented paper-saving initiatives
such as encouraging employees to use duplex printing for
internal documents and adopt environmental-friendly photocopier.
Electronic data storage is in place to minimize paper use for
record keeping. Employees are encouraged to communicate
through digital means such as sending emails to minimise
unnecessary printing and upload reports for shareholders’ access
through the internet to reduce number of printed copies.

Non-hazardous waste discharge performance is disclosed
as below:

Category of Waste BEYESE
Total Non-Hazardous Waste BEERYRE

— Office Paper used —MAERAK
Intensity RE

o RAFE AEESBRARMBRELELY
40,000,000/8 7T ( =% = — 4 : 13,500,000/8 7T ) ° &%
BRI AR st B A it 3 HR

J5IKBERL

RS EEEME  HEA L A5 KED E"
i&iHHF'EJ ' Iﬂﬂﬁkﬁﬁzkiﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁi@ﬁ@*}# mE
5 7K E A8 B [ 45 7K B B2 R o

BEEYEE

HRAEBEMEFHEERERNPLAETLE
WEREFEEERE BREEREVNEERNNEE
EEXENER BREAEBEHEEREZEYNTEKH
TEM BERSNAEREEATNEEN KB ZAE
IS ©

/1

=

\ﬁ%ﬁ

BESERERNEFA - EME T 2RERE
RO ERE -AEBERIREHLAEAIE —FEK
LW TERBUGRERE - RE - HLERERBEEB
Bk AR RAARE W R ER - NEEE E MDA
MR - Plansk BN E B 5 ED A EB R ER AR & E 51 ED
WHARREDNK TREFHEEBEGFRAZTERLT
AR - ZEEEBRAHTHIANETER WEXE
FERAELURD TR ER T ED - LA KRB E B EE R
& (AR 5 A B LAR A ED Rl i 22 o

BEEERMFMREWNTRE:

Unit 2023 2022

B —E=-=F —E__F
kg

T 253.49 426.38

kg/million rev 6.34 31.58
FTr/a8kA
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A2. Use of Resources

The Group is committed to preserving the natural assets
through improving efficiency of resources consumption. To
prevent excessive use of resources and enhance sustainability
performance, the Group has formulated proactive measures with
environmental conscious to achieve this goal.

Energy Management

A major source of energy consumption generated by
the Group is purchased electricity consumption for the office
operation. To participate as a responsible corporate citizen, the
Group endeavours to pursue green office practices and cultivates
green corporate culture, with the target to minimise electricity
consumption.

The Group has set the goal to reduce energy consumption
intensity by 5% in the next 3 years, with FY2021 as the base year
for comparison. This ESG goal is achieved by the implementation

RiR HERERERSE

A2. BIRfEM
AEERNIRBBRSERBEARXETREAR

BE- Z%ﬂﬁii@&‘@iﬁﬁéﬁ&i%@ﬂ%%%ﬁ‘@%fﬁ'

AEEHEAARREMNBEGEERERE—BR-

FERE
0 55 B A 0 TR K FE 20 B OB B S IR A
T ARA-HEEEMAEAR AREBHE
ke AAR  EEgECE XL LEERD B
BERAR

AEEREEE AT —UFARLIREE
EF RARR=ZFRRBEEZERDE5% HIRB LK
DETTELLE\EE%@ETHE‘@XE\EE iz R E

n':{ m}‘

of energy-saving measures such as adjusting the temperature of BEAEKE HERETOTRE EFNEAE
air conditioners at a reasonable level, conducting routine checks P B5 [ B B B o
for electrical appliances and turning off computers when they are
not in use.
Performance of energy consumption is summarised as BERBRERRBMAT
below:
Unit 2023 2022
Indicator(s) EE B —E-=fF — T
Direct energy HERR kWh N/A N/A
s FEHR A iE A
Indirect energy % g2 R kWh
— Electricity =i T R 2,640 3,247
Total Energy Consumption REREREE kWh 2,640 3,247
el
Intensity RE kWh/million rev 66 241
FRE/&8KkA
Water Consumption HH ok

Water consumption by employees at the office is mainly
used for basic cleaning and drinking and the amount is small. Still,
the Group encourages our employees to have water conversation
concepts such as reminding them to turn off the water tap
after uses. As the water supply and drainage facilities of the
Group’s our offices are managed by the property management
company, the Group was unable to access water consumption
records during the Year. Due to the business nature and operating
locations, the Group does not encounter any significant issues in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

BEBRAZERKRKIBARERBTERRA &
ER/N-AT AEBESEEES BN RKOES 0
RENRSEAEERAKER ARAEERAZTHH
REOKRIERVDEEELAEE AKRERAFEE
AERAKEE - HREGHERELME AKE
FESRER & B KR 73 T 3 4 8 2 4E ] B2 K A2 e
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Use of Packaging Materials

During the Reporting Period, the Group does not record any
consumption of packing materials due to its business nature.

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources
Impact on the Environment and Natural Resources

The business activities conducted by the Group do not
bring significant impact on the environment and natural resources
because of its office operation. The Group will stay resilient for
environmental protection, minimising environmental degradation
and harmful impacts on biodiversity.

Indoor Air Quality

Indoor air quality in the workplace is regularly monitored and
measured. The Group maintains indoor air quality by installing air
purification equipment in workplace and cleaning air-conditioning
systems regularly to filter pollutants and dust. Green plants are
also placed in offices to improve the overall air quality.

A4. Climate Change
Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation

The Group recognises the importance of the identification
and mitigation of significant climate-related issues, therefore
closely monitors the potential impact of climate change on
our business and operations. In accordance with the reporting
framework developed by the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”), there are two major categories
of climate-related risks, physical and transition risks. During the
Reporting Period, climate-related risks have been embedded into
the Group’s risk management system, and relevant mitigation
measures have also been formulated.

Physical Risks

Based on the global statistic, the frequency, and severity
of extreme weathers such as typhoons, storms, heavy rainfalls
and extreme cold or hot weather are getting intense. The Group
expects that its business operation would be affected by chronic
risks such as frequent typhoons and flooding, employee safety is
threatened under severe typhoon signals and business operations
need to be ceased under typhoon signal no.8 or above, leading to
delayed performance.
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The Group set out an emergency plan attached to the Staff
Handbook to ensure employees understand that their rights are
protected, staff are not required to go to work under specific
extreme weather regarding relevant local regulations. Regular
reviews of the emergency plan will be conducted to assure
business stability.

Transition Risks

To achieve the global vision of carbon neutrality, the Group
expects evolution of the regulatory, technological, and market
landscape due to climate change, including the tightening
of national policies and listing rules and the emergence of
environmentally related taxes. Stricter environmental laws and
regulations may expose enterprises to higher risks of claims and
lawsuits, which might incur additional compliance costs and affect
the reputation of the Group.

In response to the policy and legal risks as well as the
reputation risks, the Group constantly monitors any changes in
laws or regulations and global trends on climate change to avoid
cost increments, non-compliance fines, or reputational risks due
to delayed response. In addition, the Group has been taking
comprehensive environmental protection measures, including
GHG reduction measures have set targets to gradually reduce the
Group’s energy consumption and GHG emissions in the future.

SOCIAL
B1. Employment

The Group values employees as important assets. The
Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional opportunity,
compensation, and benefits packages to attract and retain talents.
The Group has established a Remuneration Committee, which
regularly reviews its remuneration policy. The Remuneration
Committee ensures packages offered by the Group are appealing
to employees and in line with the market trend.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with employment-related laws and regulations
that would have a significant impact on the Group, including but
not limited to the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage
Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance, and the Disability Discrimination
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

RiR HERERERSE

AEEECBIFM) RHETRSESR  BR
BETHESHENZIRE ERENTHIRT
REEHWEERT BTHA LH -BHMBHER
BRETETHES BREBRE-

BR R R

RTERBHPMOZRES  NEBFRFEE -
RitMmSEEE AREELCMELRE  BFEHK
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FERORBEERMERUTLELEABRESHNRE
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REBHBE-

RTERHBRRMEZZRARARBEER N&
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As of 31 December 2023, there was only 2 employees
located at Hong Kong. The below table shows the employee
details of the Group.

Indicator(s) EE

Total number of employees EEHBE
By Gender 71 Bl
Male 3

Female 28

By Age Group R EwRAR
Below 31 years old 1B AT
31-45 years old 31E455%
Above 45 years old 4555 DA £

BE-_T-=4+-A=+—B E24EEN
RES - TRIIRAEEMES -

2023 2022
2 2
2 2
0 0
0 0
0 0
2 2

During the Reporting Period, no employee left the Company.
The employee turnover rate is 0%. Details are disclosed as below.

Indicator(s) B8

By Gender =5l
Male £

Female z

By Age Group RE AR

Below 31 years old 1B A T
31-45 years old 31E455%
Above 45 years old 4555 VA £

RBEHEA NRALEEEMHB -RBRERK
KR0% FFIGHELT °

2023 2022

—E-= R

- 100%

- 50%

Recruitment, Promotion, and Remuneration

A robust, transparent, and fair recruitment process is
adopted by the Group. Talent acquisition is based solely on
candidate experience and expertise, regardless of age, ethnicity,
origin, gender identity, marital status, sexual orientation, and
religion. Employees are assessed by ability, who should fulfil the
current and future needs of the Group. The recruitment process
will be reviewed periodically by relevant personnel to ensure its
effectiveness.
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Employee promotion and career advancement will be made
based on employee contribution and in line with the recruitment
and selection process. Performance appraisal and salary
review are conducted annually to determine salary adjustments
and promotion opportunities. Written and verbal performance
evaluations will be given to all employees at least once a year,
such evaluations aim to recognise the hard work of employees
and offer comments for their improvements. Remuneration
packages are offered to employees regarding job-related
skills, qualifications, and performances. To comply with relevant
regulations, mandatory provident funds are provided to employees.

Equal Opportunities, Diversity, and Anti-discrimination

The Group emphasizes employment diversity for corporate
sustainability. Talent acquisition is based on experience and
expertise with equal employment opportunities. The Group
promotes norm based working environment which is free from
discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and vilification.

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. Employees are not discriminated
against or deprived of equal opportunities regarding gender, ethnic
background, religion, race, sexual orientation, marital status, family
status, retirement, disability, pregnancy, or any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable law.

The Group emphasises on cultural diversity. Talent
acquisition includes employees from a wide range of ages, gender,
and ethnicities. To strengthen corporate governance structure,
culture of Board diversity is integrated into the Board composition,
which consists of members with a wide variety of skill, industry
knowledge and expertise, experience, educational background,
and other qualities without discrimination.

Working Hours and Rest Days

The Group has formulated policies in determining working
hours and rest days of employees for complying local employment
regulations. Any employee who is recruited under a continuous
contract is provided with rest days (Leave entitlement) and
statutory holidays. Leave entitlements include annual leave,
sick leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, compensation leave,
compassionate leave, and wedding leave, to safeguard employee
rights and benefits.

RiR HERERERSE

BREEANBERREENEBREEMLTA
EBMEREF BFETERFRNFSESES  UE
EHEARNMEA KRS 2REEEFEIERET K
EMAMOBRBFME HRATHEERTRERENTS
T ARENKERLEER -RESRHEETER
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ME ZAARERERFIERTRS -

BE1GE ZTEMRIER

REBESHEREZ T AEECENAFE
BER ATHEBEDENSRMEXMNZ LERESH
FZE-AREEREERRENIEER BE - BENE
HH) TAEERIR -

BEERE BIRER BT RMREMNAS
HEA VSRS -EEX TSR BEER R
oEe HER EEAR REMRR RIKBE-
BPEIEBRZERMABRUEZEMEMBERE MEX
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Compensation and Dismissal

All employees are covered under the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance of Hong Kong upon joining the
Group, employees who sustain work injury would receive stated
compensation listed out by the local government and compulsory
insurance. Unreasonable dismissal under any circumstances is
strictly prohibited, dismissal would be based on reasonable and
lawful grounds supported by the internal policies of the Group. A
detailed list of major offences containing legitimate reasons for
immediate dismissal is included in the Employee Handbook.

Other Benefits and Welfare

The Group offers attractive benefits and welfare to
retain talented candidates and to build up employee loyalty.
Additional employee welfares include office insurance, employee
compensation insurance, directors, and officers (D&O) liability
insurance, discretionary bonuses. The Group will continue
to provide its employees with a well-structured and caring
environment, to enhance their sense of belonging and work
efficiency for future development.

B2. Health and Safety
Occupational Health and Safety

Employee health and safety are always the top priority of
the Group. With this regard, the Group reinforced the health and
safety-related measures to minimize workplace accidents. The
business nature of the Group, an investment holding company,
involves lower risk regarding occupational health and safety,
however, the Group still implements precautionary measures to
assure employee safety.

The Group has achieved zero work-related fatalities for
three consecutive years from FY2021 to FY2023 and no lost
working days due to work injury within the Year. During the Year,
the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
health and safety-related laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and the
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance of Hong Kong.
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B3. Development and Training

The Group values on-going development of employees
and recognises their contribution. To facilitate employee career
advancement, the Group delivers training programs according to
training needs.

The package offered by the Group in relation to development
and training includes training covering topics of business
operations, policy, and procedures of the Group, statutory and
regulatory obligations of being a director. Ongoing training,
briefings, and seminars will also be provided to staff after the
induction to refresh their professional knowledge and skills.

During the Reporting Period, 100% of employees received
training and total training hours is 35 hours. The employee’s
training data is as below.

Indicator(s) EE

By Gender =5l
Male 5

Female z

By Employee Category RESER

Senior management EREEAB
Management EHE

RiR HERERERSE
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BEE

ARERERREIGE THORETANEIRE
AEBEBEFE BREEFUARETEFNEER
RESZBSRE-ERERTSRMFERI BH
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RBSHE 2BEEEIEI AXJIREE

35/ B - B BB BURAN T ©

Percentage Average
of Employees Training Hours
Trained (%) (hours)
F 1

ZilER Z 3l R #

B2 Lt (%) (/NEF)
100% 17.5

100% 17.5
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B4. Labour Standards
Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group has zero tolerance for the recruitment of child
labour and forced labour. Candidates are required to provide
identification cards and original certificates for checking. To avoid
hiring forced labour, the Group enters employment contract with
candidates and provide working conditions in accordance with
relevant labour regulations. Once a violation of regulations is
found, the Group will immediately terminate the employment
contract and carry out an investigation, further follow-up action
will be taken if required.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations
regarding child and forced labour, including but not limited to
the Employment of Children Regulations and the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

B5. Supply Chain Management

The Group’s main purchases are general office supplies
such as drinking water, paper, and stationery. All suppliers are
based locally.

The Group has established a supplier selection system.
The selection criteria mainly consider the scale of business
and reputation of the suppliers. To enhance the supply chain
system, the Group integrates ESG issues to its supply chain
management strategy, by considering additional factors relates
to environmental and social. To ensure the selected suppliers are
responsible corporate citizens, suppliers are expected to establish
good social practice of its business operation such as protecting
employee rights, create a discrimination-free working environment,
and comply with labour standards in corresponding jurisdictions.
Selected suppliers should demonstrate good practice of code
of business ethics and full compliance with relevant regulations
regarding anti-corruption and bribery. Assessments for suppliers
are conducted by the Group. The Group obtains quotations from
more than one supplier, ensuring a fair selection process is
implemented by above-mentioned measures.
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Green Procurement

The Group strives to maintain a high level of sustainability
performance. With this regard, sustainable procurement policies
are formulated to enhance the efficiency of green procurement
procedures. To achieve a reduction in emissions target and
its negative impact on air pollution and the well-being of the
community, the Group prefers local procurement whenever
possible to minimize the consumption of transportation.

B6. Product Responsibility

As an investment company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules, the
principal activity of the Company is an investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in investments in securities listed
on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted investments with
potential for earning growth and capital appreciation. Therefore,
issues on product responsibility including health and safety,
advertising, labelling relating to products and customer services
are not applicable to the Group.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations that would have
a significant impact on the Group, including but not limited
to the Trade Descriptions Ordinance and the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong, concerning health and safety,
advertising, labelling, and privacy matters relating to products and
services and methods of redress.

As stated in the Group’s Employee Manual, disclosure of
insider information to a third party is prohibited, and so consumer
data and privacy matters relating to services are protected.
Employees are required to read the Employee Manual and follow
it strictly. During the Year, the Group did not receive any products-
or service-related complaints.

The Group protects its intellectual property rights by
registration of domain names in Hong Kong. Such domain name is
renewed upon its expiration. The Group understands and complies
with the intellectual property rights regulations.
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B7. Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to achieving the highest standards
of business conduct and has zero tolerance of corruption and
related malpractice. All employees and business partners of the
Group are informed of this policy and the relevant anti-corruption
requirements of the Group. All personnel covered by the anti-
corruption policy are required to comply with relevant laws and
regulations regarding anti-bribery and corruption, including but
not limited to the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201
of the Laws of Hong Kong)”. The Group’s management received
anti-corruption training, the awareness of anti-corruption has been
enhanced.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations regarding bribery extortion, fraud and money
laundering that would have a significant impact on the Group,
including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.
During the Reporting Period, there was no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

Whistle-blowing Policy

The Group encourages its employees to report alleged
malpractices or misconduct through various channels. The
management will take immediate action to investigate the issue, in
order to prevent any malpractice or misconduct relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering that will happen in the
Group.

B8. Community Investment

The Group is dedicated to aiding the public through social
engagement and charitable contributions. As a means of fulfilling
corporate social responsibility, the Group emphasizes greater
involvement in community programs. These initiatives not only
benefit society but also foster a positive corporate culture. The
Group actively encourages our employees to give back to society
by engaging in voluntary work to assist those in need.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
during the Reporting Period are investments in securities listed
on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted investments
with a potential for earnings growth and capital appreciation.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s revenue for the Reporting Period comprised
dividend income, interest earned from bank deposits and loans
and receivables.

Trading of trading securities is also a principal activity of the
Group, the figures of the gross proceeds from disposals of trading
securities are disclosed in the consolidated statement of Profit or
loss and other Comprehensive Income.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Company and a
discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
Reporting Period and the material factors underlying its results
and financial position are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion & Analysis” from pages 4 to 5 and
pages 6 to 16 of this annual report respectively. The outlook of
the Company’s business is discussed in the “Chairman Statement”
from pages 4 to 5 of this annual report. Description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company can be
found throughout this annual report particularly in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important events
affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of the
financial year 2023, can be found in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. Environmental policies and performance are
discussed in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
from pages 17 to 34 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s investments are partially carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the British Virgin Islands
and Hong Kong while the Company itself was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability with its shares listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Our establishment and operations accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the Bermuda,
the British Virgin Islands and Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the
date of this annual report, we have complied in material respects
with the relevant rules, laws and regulations in the Cayman
Islands, where applicable, and Bermuda, the British Virgin Islands
and Hong Kong that have a significant impact on the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As the Group principally engages in investments in listed
and unlisted securities, no specific customers or suppliers will be
involved in the operation of business. The investee companies
and the investment manager are good working partners creating
value for the Group. The Group also values the knowledge and
skills of its employees, and continues to provide favourable career
development opportunities for its employees.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 79.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 81 and note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

No property, plant and equipment held by the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

No distributable reserve of the Company at 31 December
2023, according to the Companies Act of Bermuda.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or applicable laws of Bermuda.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 152.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SHARES

The Company did not redeem any of its listed shares
during the Reporting Period. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed
shares during the Reporting Period.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) at its annual general meeting held
on 17 June 2022. The purposes of the Share Option Scheme
are to provide incentives to the participants, and to recognise
their contributions made and to be made to the growth and
development of the Group.

All Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) and
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries and consultants,
advisors, agents, customers, service providers, contractors,
business partners of any member of the Group in the sole
discretion of the Board, has contributed to the Group or any
member of it are eligible to participate in the Share Option
Scheme.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 17 June 2022, the total
number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall not in aggregate exceed 43,167,222 shares of the Company,
which amounted to approximately 7.14% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this annual report. The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force until 16 June 2032, so the
remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately eight
years and three months as at the date of this report.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the placing new shares under the heading “Placing
of New Shares” and the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that
will or may result in the Company issues shares were entered into
during the year or subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this report were:

Wu Ming Gai

Chau Wai Hing

William Keith Jacobsen (resigned on 30 June 2023)
Chan Man Yi

Leung Yin Ting

Wong Sze Lok

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”)
and with the recommendation of the nomination committee of the
Company (“Nomination Committee”), Mr. Wu Ming Gai and Mr.
Chau Wai Hing, being the longest in office and determined by lot,
shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

Ms. Chan Man Yi, Ms. Leung Yin Ting and Mr. Wong Sze
Lok are independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has received annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors as regards
their independence of the Company and considers that each of
the independent non-executive Directors is independent of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with any member of the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Mr. Wu Ming Gai’s interest in contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions,
arrangements or other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, or its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director of the Company or his connected
entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time during
the Reporting Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-Laws provides that every Director shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all liability
incurred by him as such director in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour,
or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may
be brought against the Directors and officers of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Such insurance was in force during the Reporting
Period and remained in force as of the date of this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of Directors are set out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wu Ming Gai, aged 48, joined the Company in July
2015. He was re-designated from a non-executive Director to an
executive Director effective from 1 March 2016 and appointed as
the chairman (the “Chairman”) of the Board in February 2019 and
ceased to be the Chairman with effect from 1 December 2022. He
is also a director of each subsidiary of our Company. Mr. Wu is
one of the directors and responsible officers of Tiger Securities
Asset Management Company Limited (“Tiger Securities”) (as
the investment manager of the Company since 1 March 2016).
Mr. Wu is currently licensed under the Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC”) to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities),
Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (assets management)
regulated activities accredited to Tiger Securities. He has obtained
the Honor Diploma of Accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan
University in July 1999. He has over 13 years of management
experience in fund accounting and asset management. He was
the chief operating officer of Tiger Securities from 2007 to 2012
responsible for the overall operation of fund management. Since
2013, he has been the director of the same company responsible
for the general management of regulated activities.
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Mr. Chau Wai Hing, aged 58, was appointed as executive
Director and a member of investment committee of the Board on
23 April 2021 and re-designated as chairman of the investment
committee of the Board with effect from 20 June 2022. Mr.
Chau has taken up the position as the Chairman with effect
from 1 December 2022. Mr. Chau possesses over 30 years
of experience in banking, finance and wealth management
and held executive positions at several international financial
institutions and listed companies. Mr. Chau graduated from City
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree in Quantitative
Analysis for Business, Postgraduate Certificate in Professional
Accounting and Master Degree in Finance. He also holds a
Master Degree in Professional Accounting from the Southern
Cross University in Australia. Mr. Chau is a fellow member of the
Institute of Public Accountants in Australia, a fellow member of
the Institute of Financial Accountants, a chartered member of the
Chartered Institute for Securities and Investment and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.
Mr. Chau previously joined the Company as a non-executive
Director and an executive Director for the period from July 2015
to September 2015 and September 2015 to February 2019
respectively. Mr. Chau was a licensed person to carry out type
1 (dealing in securities), type 4 (advising on securities) and type
9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO from
July 2020 to April 2021. Mr. Chau is currently an independent
non-executive director of abc Multiactive Limited (stock code:
8131) since October 2023 and an executive director of UBA
Investments Limited (stock code: 768) since September 2021.
He was an independent non-executive director of Carnival Group
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 996) from May 2019
to December 2023, a company incorporated in the Bermuda with
limited liability and the listing of the shares were cancelled on
7 December 2023 and was ordered to be wound up by the High
Court of Hong Kong on 23 August 2022, Vestate Group Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 1386) from February 2017 to March 2021
and he was also an executive director of UBA Investments Limited
(Stock code: 768) from December 2008 to April 2015.
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Chan Man Yi, aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 August 2018. She
is currently the chairman and a member of each of the audit
committee and the nomination committee of the Company and
a member of the remuneration committee of the Company. Ms.
Chan was graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Master’s degree in professional accounting and has over
25 years of experience in pension and provident fund industry.
Ms. Chan is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Ms. Chan was the company secretary
of Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8159)
from 4 December 2012 to 10 January 2019 and she is currently
an independent non-executive director of Orient Securities
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8001), both companies
are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Leung Yin Ting, aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, member of each of the
audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company
on 14 December 2018. She was appointed as a member of the
nomination committee of the Company on 17 June 2022. Ms.
Leung is a barrister in Hong Kong and was called to the Bar
of Hong Kong in 2013. She is currently a member of HKICPA
and has achieved the specialist qualification in insolvency of
HKICPA in 2016. Ms. Leung obtained a Bachelor degree of Laws
from University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in 2004, and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong
Kong in 2006. Before pursuing her career in Law, she has more
than four years’ audit experience in the Big Four accounting firms
in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Wong Sze Lok, aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Board and a member of the
nomination committee of the Board on 23 April 2021. Mr. Wong
was appointed as a member of audit committee of the Board
on 17 June 2022. He has extensive experience in auditing and
corporate governance. Mr. Wong was the chief financial officer of
Century Entertainment International Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Amax International Holdings Limited) (Stock code: 959),
the financial controller of Guoan International Limited (Stock
code: 143) and an independent non-executive director of Grand
Field Group Holdings Limited (Stock code: 115). Mr. Wong is
currently an independent non-executive director of TBK & Sons
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1960), China e-wallet Payment
Group Limited (Stock code: 802) and Aowei Holding Limited
(Stock code: 1370). Mr. Wong also serves as the company
secretary of Unitas Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8020) and
Wai Hung Group Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3321). Mr. Wong
obtained a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1996, a master
of management degree from Macquarie University in November
2004 and a certificate of higher education in Law from University
of Essex in December 2021. Mr. Wong is currently a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
a Certified Information Systems Auditor.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or the chief
executive (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company had,
nor were they taken to or deemed to have under Part XV of the
SFO, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or any
interests which are required to be entered into the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) to the Listing Rules.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2023
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company (including their
spouse and children under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporates.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had been notified of the
following substantial shareholders’ interests and short position, being
5% or more of the Company’s shares and underlying shares which are
required to be recorded in the register of interests in shares and short
positions maintained under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRREAQFA 2RO RERER G 2 #E

1589

R-B_=F+_A=+t—B Z(BHFEHE

fG=BI) E3B6FRABEF 2R AR BERMET -
ARAREMEATEIERRES R BN RHEER
PEE% A EZ EFRE

Percentage of total
issued shares of the
Company as at

31 December 2023

EE AT
NR=®s—==
Number of ordinary +=A=+—8
Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interests shares held ZERITRA
BREREEEB 5 RntE FEEEEREE BYASH
Yu Po Kwan Beneficial owner/ 67,594,000 (L) 11.18%
Beneficial interest
RERF EnBAEAN Enn
Solution Smart Holdings Limited Beneficial owner/ 5,174,000 (L) 0.86%
Beneficial interest (Notes 1 & 2)
EnEBEAN BEuEn (HiaE1702)
SW Venture Asia Limited Interest in a controlled corporation/ 5,174,000 (L) 0.86%
Corporate interest (Notes 1 & 2)
REflEEE R OEE g (KiaE1/02)
Yeung Shing Wai Interest in a controlled corporation/ 5,174,000 (L) 0.86%
Corporate interest (Notes 1 & 2)
5B (2 T EE R B R (Hia1702)
(L) — Long Position (L) — &
(S) — Short Position (S) — &
Notes: iFa
1. Solution Smart Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the 1. Solution Smart Holdings Limited J5— 5 i 3 & iz 2 Bf

British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by

SW Venture Asia Limited. SW Venture Asia Limited, a company

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is

wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung Shing Wai. Accordingly,

Mr. Yeung Shing Wai and SW Venture Asia Limited are deemed to

be interested in the Shares held by Solution Smart Holdings Limited

under the SFO.
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2. Following the completion of the Rights Issue in October 2019, the
Placing in June 2021, July 2022 and July 2023, the Company had
not received any notifications of disclosure of interests from those
shareholders reporting the change in percentage of shares. Based
on the issued shares as at 31 December 2023, the percentage level

of those shareholders had been reduced to below 5%.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the
Company has not been notified of any other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which had been recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Details of significant management contracts in relation to
the Company’s business are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Reporting Period.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group is an investment holding company. In the opinion
of the Directors, it is therefore of no value to disclose details of
the Group’s customers and suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023 which also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in note 33(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the Reporting Period, the above-mentioned
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
are constituted exempted transactions under chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules which were carried out and disclosed in compliance
with the relevant requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Changes in directors’ information in respect of the period
between the publication date of the 2023 interim report of the
Company and this report, which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to the requirement of Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules are set out in the section of “Biographical Details Of
Directors” and “Board of Directors” of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) of the Company’s is composed of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman),
Mr. Wong Sze Lok and Ms. Leung Yin Ting. It reports directly to
the Board and reviews matters within the scope of audit, such as
financial statements and internal controls, to protect the interests
of the Company’s shareholders.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s
external auditor, to discuss audit process and accounting issues,
and reviews effectiveness of internal controls and risk evaluation.
Written terms of reference, which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee are regularly reviewed and
updated by the Board. The terms of reference is available on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters
including review and approval of the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited (“McMillan
Woods”) was appointed as auditor of the Company on 23
December 2019.

The financial statements of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 have been audited by
McMillan Woods. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint McMillan
Woods as the auditor of the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting
date are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

By order of the Board
Cocoon Holdings Limited
Chau Wai Hing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Maintaining high standards of corporate governance in
everything we do.

Sound corporate governance practices are crucial to the
smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company and
its ability to attract investment, protect rights of shareholders and
stakeholders, and enhance shareholder value. The Company is
committed to high standards of corporate governance with a view
to being transparent, open and accountable to our shareholders.

The Company has adopted all the code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of the Stock
Exchange as its own code on corporate governance practices.

The Company had met the relevant code provisions set out
in the Code during the Reporting Period, except the following
deviations:

Code provision C.2.1 of part 2 of the Code provides that
the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The chief executive officer of the Company has been
vacant following the resignation of Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan
on 20 June 2022. Until the appointment of new chief executive
officer, the executive Directors continue to oversee the day-to-day
management of the business and operations of the Group.

Code Provision C.1.6 of part 2 of the Code provides that
independent non-executive directors and other non-executive
directors should attend general meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. The non-
executive Director, Mr. William Keith Jacobsen (resigned on 30
June 2023), and independent non-executive Director, Ms. Chan
Man Yi, did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 30 June 2023 due to other commitments.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the
Company’s corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the Code.
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CULTURES AND VALUES

A healthy corporate culture across the Group is integral
to attain its vision and strategy. It is the Board’s role to foster a
corporate culture with the following core principles and to ensure
that the Company’s vision, values and business strategies are
aligned to it.

1. Integrity and code of conduct

The Group strives to maintain high standards of business
ethics and corporate governance across all our activities and
operations. The Directors, management and staff are all required
to act lawfully, ethically and responsibly, and the required
standards and norms are explicitly set out in the training materials
for all new staff and embedded in various policies such as the
Group’s employee handbook (including therein the Group’s code
of conduct), the anti-corruption policy and the whistleblowing
policy of the Group. Trainings are conducted from time to time to
reinforce the required standards in respect of ethics and integrity.

2. Commitment

The Group believes that the culture of commitment to
workforce development, workplace safety and health, diversity, and
sustainability is one where people have a feeling of commitment
and emotional engagement with the Group’s mission. This sets
the tone for a strong, productive workforce that attracts, develops,
and retains the best talent and produces the highest quality work.
Moreover, the Company’s strategy in the business development
and management are to achieve long-term, steady and sustainable
growth, while having due considerations from environment, social
and governance aspects.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board is comprised
two executive Directors, Mr. Chau Wai Hing, acts as Chairman
and Mr. Wu Ming Gai. The Company has three independent
non-executive Directors, Ms. Chan Man Yi, Ms. Leung Yin Ting
and Mr. Wong Sze Lok, representing more than one-third of the
Board. Mr. Wong Sze Lok, Ms. Chan Man Yi and Ms. Leung Yin
Ting all have appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise.
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During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, the changes to the composition of the Board were
as follows:

- Mr. William Keith Jacobsen resigned as non-executive
Director and member of investment committee and
nomination committee of the Board on 30 June 2023.

All Directors have distinguished themselves in their field
of expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The biographical details of each
Director are disclosed on pages 40 to 43 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board composition comprises
two female Directors. The Board would continue to maintain at
least one female Director on the Board.

The Board’s composition is in compliance with the
requirement under Rule 3.10A and Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules
that the number of independent non-executive Directors must
represent at least one-third of the Board and at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. In order to ensure that
independent views and input of the independent non-executive
Directors are made available to the Board, the Nomination
Committee and the Board are committed to assess the Directors’
independence annually with regards to all relevant factors related
to the independent non-executive Directors including the following:

required character, integrity, expertise, experience and
stability to fulfill their roles;

- time commitment and attention to the Company’s
affairs;

- firm commitment to their independent roles and to the
Board;

- declaration of conflict of interest in their roles as
independent non-executive Directors;
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- no involvement in the daily management of the
Company nor in any relationship or circumstances
which would affect the exercise of their independent
judgment; and

- the Chairman meets with the independent non-
executive Directors regularly without the presence of
the executive Directors.

Each independent non-executive Director has pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, confirmed that he/she is
independent of the Company and the Company also considers
that they are independent.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material relationship) between members of the Board.

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors shall hold office
subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting
of the Company at least once every three years and eligible for
re-election.

The term of office of each of non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) is for a period of
three years, subject to retirement by rotation.

Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board, headed by the Chairman, is responsible for
providing high-level guidance and effective oversight of the
management of the Company, formulation and approval of the
Group’s development and business strategies and policies,
approval of annual budgets, financial results and business plans,
recommendation of dividend, and supervision of management in
accordance with the provisions set out in the Bye-Laws.
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The executive Directors are responsible for day-to-
day management of the Company’s operations. They conduct
regular meetings with the management of the subsidiaries of the
Company, at which operational issues and financial performance
are evaluated.

The Company views well-developed and timely reporting
systems and internal controls are essential, and the Board plays a
key role in the implementation and monitoring of internal controls
and risk management.

The Board has established procedure to enable Directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Matters specifically decided by the Board and those
reserved for the management, such as daily management,
administration and operation of the Company, etc. with respective
level of authorities with regard to key corporate strategy, policy
and contractual commitments, are reviewed by the Board. The
management shall report back to the Board.

The Bye-Laws contain description of responsibilities and
operation procedures of the Board. The Board holds regular
meeting and listens to the operating reports of the Company and
makes policies. Significant operating policies of the Company
have to be discussed and passed by the Board. Board meetings
include regular meetings as defined in the Code and other
meetings when necessary. The Board meets formally at least four
times a year.

Besides regular and other meetings, the Board obtains
adequate information through working meetings, presided by the
Chairman in a timely manner, to monitor objectives and strategies
of the management, financial conditions and operating results of
the Company and provisions of significant agreements.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board held four regular
Board meetings at approximately quarterly interval and other
Board meetings which were convened when deemed necessary.
Due notice and Board papers of regular Board meetings were
given to all Directors prior to the meeting in accordance with
the Bye-Laws and the Code. Details of individual attendance of
Directors at regular Board meetings in 2023 are set out below:

The attendance of the regular Board meetings in 2023:

Executive Directors
HITES

Chau Wai Hing

B (& 8

Mr. Wu Ming Gai
HASE =S A&

Non-executive Director

FHITES

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen (resigned on 30 June 2023)
BEEEEAE (R-ZTE-_=FNA=1+HB&E)

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES

Ms. Chan Man Yi

BReE L+

Ms. Leung Yin Ting

R

Mr. Wong Sze Lok

ERELE

There was no change to the composition of the Board
and all Board committees after the end of the year ended 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this report.

N
TRER/RE

RBEEHR EFEERTORAEHNESES
FARNEBE-RUERAREFTERERT HAi
EXZeeR THEFSORZEEBNNRESRTEX
HERBEAMNEZTINESRNEARLBERE - —F
T FHEREERNESEAINBEFBIIH
LIRE

Rn= FHEEHESS SRS

A

No. of regular Board Meeting attended/
No. of regular Board Meeting held
HEEHESSSBZRY
BOEHESTTEINRY

4/4

4/4

1/2

4/4

4/4

4/4
REBEE-_TE-_=F+-_A=+—"BIEEEERX
E

ZHRRBEARSAS EFERMBESTEERE
AR ) o

Annual Report 2023 £ g 53



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A fm
ERER/RE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 of part 2 of the Code provides that
the roles of Chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established set out in writing.
The Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are not
related to each other and there are clear divisions among their
responsibilities with a view to achieving a balance of power and
authority.

The role of the Chairman assumed by an executive Director,
Mr. Chau Wai Hing who takes responsibilities of the Chairman
as specified in the Code on overall strategic planning and
development of the Group and effective functioning of the Board.

The chief executive officer of the Company has been vacant
following the resignation of Ms. Chan Carman Wing Yan on 20
June 2022. Until the appointment of new chief executive officer,
the executive Directors continue to oversee the day-to-day
management of the business and operations of the Group.

The Chairman is the leader of the Board and he oversees
the Board so that it acts in the best interests of the Group. The
Chairman is responsible for deciding the agenda of each Board
meeting, taking into account, where appropriate, matters proposed
by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has
overall responsibility for providing leadership, vision and direction
in the development of the business of the Company. As Mr. Chau
Wai Hing is the Chairman since 1 December 2022 and has served
as the executive Director of the Group, such practice deviates
from Code Provision C.2.1 of the Code as set forth in Appendix
C1 to the Listing Rules. The Board believes that vesting the
roles of both the Chairman and the chief executive officer in the
same person can facilitate the execution of the Group’s business
strategies and boost effectiveness of its operation. Therefore, the
Board considers that the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of
the Code is appropriate in such circumstance. In addition, under
the supervision of the Board which comprises two executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, the
Board is appropriately structured with balance of power to provide
sufficient checks to protect the interests of the Company and
the shareholders (the “Shareholders”) of the Company. During
the Reporting Period, the Chairman had held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of the
other executive Directors and non-executive Directors.

The Board considers that there are adequate balance of
power and safeguards in place and will review and monitor this
situation periodically and will ensure that present structure would
not impair the balance of power of the Company.
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Responsibilities of Directors

In the course of discharging their duties, the Directors act in
good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders of the Company. Their
responsibilities include:

- Attending regular board meetings focusing on business
strategy, operational issues and financial performance.

- Active participation on the boards of subsidiaries of
the Company.

- Approval of annual budgets for each operating
company covering strategy, financial and business
performance, key risks and opportunities.

- Monitoring the quality, timeliness, relevance and
reliability of internal and external reporting.

- Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest
of management, Board members and shareholders,
including misuse of corporate assets and abuse in
related party transaction.

- Ensuring processes are in place to maintain the
overall integrity of the Company, including financial
statements, relationships with other stakeholders, and
compliance with all laws and ethics.

To enable the Company’s Directors to meet their obligations,
an appropriate organisational structure is in place with clearly
defined responsibilities and limits of authority.

Board Committees

A number of board committees of the Company, including
audit committee of the Board (“Audit Committee”), investment
committee of the Board (“Investment Committee”), Nomination
Committee and remuneration committee of the Board
(“Remuneration Committee”), have been established by the Board
to strengthen its functions and to enhance its expertise. These
committees have been formed with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with the committees’ authority and
duties.
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Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, as at
the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprising
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Sze
Lok (Chairman), Ms. Chan Man Yi and Ms. Leung Yin Ting.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
have been reviewed with reference to the Code which is
available on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities are to review
and consider Company’s policy for remuneration of Directors
and senior management, to determine remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management (under code
provision E.1.2(c)(i) was adopted) including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, and to recommend to the Board
on remuneration of independent non-executive Directors.

Set out below is the summary of work of the Remuneration
Committee done in 2023:

- reviewed the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee;

- reviewed the remuneration policy for 2023/2024;

- determined the remuneration of executive Directors
and senior management; and

- reviewed and made recommendation of the fee of
the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors).
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management
(including all executive Directors) by band for the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)

FHER (Bx)

0 to 1,000,000
0%1,000,000

Further particulars regarding all Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 125 to 126.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during
2023. Details of individual attendance of its members are set out
in the table below:

The change of members of the Remuneration Committee
during the Reporting Period and up to the date of

this report and their attendance of the Remuneration
Committee meeting in 2023:

Names

e

Mr. Wong Sze Lok (Chairman)

mREELE (EE)

Ms. Chan Man Yi

BREUEL T

Ms Leung Yin Ting
REBPL L

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of Directors and senior executives
is determined with reference to benchmarking of relevant
competitors in geographical areas where the Group carry on its
businesses, career progressions of the individual, economic trend
in geographical areas where the Group carry on its businesses,
recognition of experience, role contribution; performance of the
Group and the individual’s performance. The Directors’ fees and
all other emoluments paid or payable to the Directors during the
Reporting Period are set out on an individual and named basis in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Company’s Audit
Committee is composed of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman), Mr. Wong Sze
Lok and Ms. Leung Yin Ting. It reports directly to the Board and
reviews matters within the scope of audit, such as financial
statements and internal controls, to protect the interests of the
Company’s shareholders.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s
external auditor to discuss audit process and accounting issues,
and reviews effectiveness of internal controls and risk evaluation.
Written terms of reference, which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee are regularly reviewed and
updated by the Board. The terms of reference is available on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

Set out below is the summary of work done in 2023:

- review of the consolidated and condensed financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
for the six months ended 30 June 2023 respectively;

- review of effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems;

- review of internal audit function;

- review of continuing connected transactions and
annual caps;

- review of implementation of policy for employees
of the Company to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters;

- review of independent auditor’s report and
management letter; and

- consideration and approval of 2023 audit fees and
audit work, review of engagement letter and make
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of
auditor.

As at 31 December 2023, the arrangement for employees
of the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters was in place.
No reporting has been received by Audit Committee during the
Reporting Period.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Reporting
Period. Details of individual attendance of its members are set out
in the table below:

The change of members of the Audit Committee during
the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report and
their attendance of Audit Committee meetings in 2023:

Names

HH

Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman)
REELLT (F/E)

Ms. Leung Yin Ting
REIBPLL

Mr. Wong Sze Lok

ERELEE

Nomination Committee

The Board has established a Nomination Committee on
1 April 2012 which currently comprises, three independent
non-executive Directors, Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman), Ms. Leung
Yin Ting and Mr. Wong Sze Lok.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have
been reviewed with reference to the Code which is available on
the Company’s website and website of the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee’s responsibilities are to review
and consider the structure, size and composition of the Board
regularly and make recommendation on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.
Its duties include making recommendation to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.
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Set out below is the summary of work of the Nomination
Committee done in 2023:

- made recommendation to the Board on matters relating
to, inter alia, nomination of candidates to the Board
and re-election of retiring Directors;

- reviewed the board diversity policy and nomination
policy;

- reviewed the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee;

- conducted an annual review of the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors; and

reviewed the Board composition and structure.

According to the Bye-Laws, the Board has the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.

The Nomination Committee also nominated and the Board
recommended Mr. Wu Ming Gai and Mr. Chau Wai Hing to retire
by rotation and, being eligible, to offer themselves for re-election
by shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming 2024 annual
general meeting.

In considering the nomination of appointment and/or re-
appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee assessed
the relevant candidates on criteria such as integrity, experience,
skill, professional qualifications, independent mind and ability
to commit time etc, and made recommendation to the Board for
approval.

NOMINATION POLICY

The secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
shall call a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from the Director(s) for consideration
by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by the
Director(s). The factors which would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate for Director include, inter alia, reputation for integrity,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that
are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy,
willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as the
Director, diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives
appropriate to the Company’s business. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
Reporting Period. Details of individual attendance of its members
are set out in the table below:

The change of members of the Nomination Committee
during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report and their attendance of Nomination Committee
meeting in 2023:

Names

e

Ms. Chan Man Yi (Chairman)
REELLT (FE)

Ms. Leung Yin Ting
REIBFL L

Mr. Wong Sze Lok
wmRESLE

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has formulated the board diversity policy
aiming at setting out the approach on diversity of the Board of
the Company.

The Board recognises the importance of having a diverse
Board in enhancing the board effectiveness and corporate
governance. A diverse Board will include and make good use
of differences in the skills, industry knowledge and experience,
education, background and other qualities, etc. of Directors and
does not discriminate on the ground of race, age, gender or
religious belief. These differences will be taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the Board and when
possible should be balanced appropriately.

The Nomination Committee has responsibility for identifying
and nominating for approval by the Board, candidates for
appointment to the Board. It takes responsibility in assessing
the appropriate mix of experience, expertise, skills and diversity
required on the Board and assessing the extent to which the
required skills are represented on the Board and reviewing
effectiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing
and reporting to the Board in relation to Board diversity.
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Board appointments will be based on merit and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates to join the Board will be, in
part, dependent on the pool of candidates with the necessary
knowledge, experience, skills, educational background and other
qualities. The final decision will be based on merit and contribution
the chosen candidate will bring to the Board.

The Board considers that Board diversity, including gender
diversity, is a vital asset to the business.

At present, the Nomination Committee has not set any
measurable objectives to implement the board diversity policy.
However, it will consider and review and setting of any measurable
objectives from time to time. The board diversity policy is subject
to annual review by Nomination Committee.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted dividend policy, the dividend
policy does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. In
considering any dividend, the Board shall consider the actual and
expected financial performance of the Group, retained earnings
and distributable reserves of the Company and each of the
members of the Group, the level of the Group’s debts to equity
ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial covenants, any
restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group’s lenders or other contractual restrictions, the Group’s
expected working capital requirements and future expansion
plans, general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Group, and any other factors that the Board deems
appropriate. The Board has the absolute discretion to recommend
any dividends.
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Training and Continuous Professional Development

Director’s training is an ongoing process. During the
Reporting Period, Directors received from the Company updates
on changes and development to the legislative and regulatory
environments in which the Company operates. Directors
participated in continuous professional development such as
attending seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. On appointment to the Board, each
newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction
package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and
other relevant regulatory requirements. The Company had
received record of the trainings during the Reporting Period from
each Director relating to development and refreshment of their
knowledge and skills.

Reading regulatory

Directors

Ex

Executive Directors
HITES

Mr. Chau Wai Hing
JE {2 B 5% A

Mr. Wu Ming Gai
HASE =S

Non-executive Director

FHITES

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen (resigned on 30 June 2023)
BEEEEAE(R-TE_=F~A=1+HB&MT)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES

Ms. Chan Man Yi

BREUEL LT

Ms. Leung Yin Ting

REE L+

Mr. Wong Sze Lok
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as required under the Code. The major roles
and functions of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
are:

- to develop and review the Company’s policy and
practices on corporate governance; and

- to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements,
compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors and the Company’s compliance with the
Code.

the code of conduct and

The Board had considered the following corporate
governance matters for 2023:

- review of the policy and practices adopted by the
Company and training for Directors, etc.

- review of usage of annual caps on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group

- review of compliance with the Code and disclosure of
Corporate Governance Report

— review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) is appointed a representative from an external
secretarial services provider as the Company Secretary. The
primary contact person of the Company with the Company
Secretary is Mr. Chau Wai Hing, the executive Director. The role
of the Company Secretary is to ensure effective information
flows and communication among Directors, as well as between
shareholders and management of the Company. The Company
Secretary is also responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. During the Reporting Period,
the Company Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge.
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DIVERSITY OF WORKFORCE

As at 31 December 2023, the Company comprises 2 female
employees and 3 male employees (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors). The
Company would continue to maintain at least one female
employee.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors for the Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all the Directors confirmed
that in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023, they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

The Company has also established written guidelines
regarding securities transactions on no less exacting terms of the
Model Code for specific individual who may have access to inside
information in relation to the securities of the Company.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviewed engagement letter and report
from the external auditor of the Company, McMillan Woods,
confirmed its independence. The Audit Committee also approves
their appointment, discusses the scope of their audit, approved
the audit fees, and the scope and appropriate fees for any
non-audit services requested to be provided by external auditors.

McMillan Woods provided annual audit services in respect of
the Company’s consolidated financial statements prepared under
International Financial Reporting Standards for the year ended
31 December 2023. The consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, remuneration paid/payable
to the Company’s auditors, McMillan Woods and other McMillan
Woods network firms, is as follows:

Services rendered: HK$
Audit services 368,000
Non-audit services

— Review of interim financial information 60,000
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board recognises its responsibility to ensure the
Company maintains a sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are designed and established to ensure
that assets are safeguarded against improper use or disposal,
relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied
with, reliable financial and accounting records are maintained in
accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory
reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on the
Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.
Review of the Group’s risk management and internal controls
covering major financial, operational and compliance controls, as
well as risk management functions. The risk management and
internal control systems can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as they
are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives.

The Group has not established an internal audit, but has
engaged an external professional consultant to perform the work
of internal audit function and during the Reporting Period, the
external professional consultant had reviewed and assessed
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems (the
“Systems”) and reported to the Audit Committee (the “Review”).
The Review would identify the risks associated with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors
and events which may include politics, economy, technology,
environmental, social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed
and prioritised based on their relevant impact and occurrence
opportunity. The relevant risk management strategy would be
applied to each type of risks according to the assessment results,
type of risk management strategy has been listed as follow:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of
risk or undertake actions by the Group to reduce the
impact of the risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective
so as to avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of
the risk or allocate to different location or product or
market;

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third
party.

66 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED # B XS #ZRAER L T

BEREERABEZERR

EEgAREEEARREARAMGBRE2EEA
HHEREENABEZERR - AEERAREERA
MEERGNRAMBELEERREERNTIEER
HEE RBERERABBRNERG RIZHEBE
EARREREZREFTAIENMERELE AU
FEEHRLERARESFEINAEERANEREA
BoHASERREELABEZNBRISREZEY
BER BEEEMGREEUALAREERE &
REEFMAEERZREEEEMIERREERE
BEENRER MARERTSEERANKERLSK
BRFHAEMIFBHNRE -

AEBYRKIIAMBEZ BERBINBEEXR
MEITARE RGN TIE EREHME I BEXE
BEERa M A S B A E R EE L ARBEE R
(ZEFK]) YRBRZEGER([RFT]) &
ARERGHEER D BREEREEIANEEEE-
MBERERAREE - ZRKEBEEA RN
AELEE#NERAEEXTEERMNER FIREEE
BOR &E R BRE - HERBETI -XABRERE
HABM R 8 R 3 A m A ge TR E L REE B R IR T
HREE R B R A KRB A A RERARN S RER
[\ fe B TR SR Y AR BB S AT

- EARFREMRE:-EZEIABOZEIARE
B SRETT B R KR R Y 2 2

-  ERRE REXBRIZXEFRARER

A .
a0
Z N

- BABRSEMIE: OHEABNZEXDE
B AN [R] 9 B SREE an BT 5

- RERER EBRARLAEETE=7-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the Systems
with the management annually to ensure that the management
has performed its duty to have effective Systems.

The external consultant, has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s Systems for the year ended 31
December 2023 and made recommendations to improve the
effectiveness of the Group’s Systems. After the Review, the
management provided an action plan so as to mitigate those
identified deficiencies in a timely manner. All internal control
findings would be followed up closely to ensure that the action
plan is implemented accordingly.

During the Reporting Period, the Board was satisfied that
the current internal control systems of the Company are effective
and adequate and that the qualifications and experience of the
staff, performing accounting and financial reporting functions
and the training programmes of the Company as well as the
experiences and resources for setting the budget of the Company
are adequate. The Company has complied with the requirements
under D.2.1 to D.2.7 and D.3.3 of the Code relating to risk
management and internal control.

In addition to the Review, undertaken by the external
professional consultants, the external auditor also assessed the
adequacy and effectiveness of certain key risk management
and internal controls as part of their statutory audits. Where
appropriate, the external auditor’s recommendations are adopted
and enhancements to the risk management and internal controls
will be made.

The Board has received a confirmation from the
management of the Company on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system.

To facilitate the management and standardisation of
internal operation, the Company has regulations in place that
specify the responsibilities and scopes of anti-corruption works.
Anti-corruption policy has been adopted and all employees of the
Group have been required to strictly abide them. To encourage
employees to report the improprieties they found or suspected,
the Company has established appropriate whistleblowing
procedures pursuant to its whistleblowing policy so as to provide
a secure and fully confidential environment for employees to
report the improprieties that they genuinely concerned.
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DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of
timely, accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material
information about the Group. The Company has adopted a Policy
on Disclosure of Inside Information which sets out the obligations,
guidelines and procedures for handling and dissemination of
inside information. With these guidelines and procedures, the
Group has management controls in place to ensure that potential
inside information can be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated for the attention of the Board to decide about the need
for disclosure.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider
that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that, for
this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDER AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication
policy and is reviewed by the Audit Committee on a annual
basis. The objective of shareholders communication policy is
to provide our shareholders and potential investors with equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company. The Directors consider that the shareholders’
communication policy of the Company is satisfactory in terms of
its implementation and effectiveness.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to
ensure its shareholders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives. These include annual and special general meeting,
annual report, interim report, various notices, announcements and
circulars.

At the annual general meeting held on 17 June 2023 (“2023
AGM”), a separate resolution was proposed by the chairman
of the 2023 AGM in respect of each separate issue, including
re-election of retiring Directors. The Chairman of the Board and
the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and members of Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee, and representatives of
McMillan Woods attended the 2023 AGM to answer questions of
shareholders of the Company. Procedure for conducting a poll
were explained by the chairman of the 2023 AGM at the 2023
AGM.
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Attendance of individual Directors at general meeting(s)
in 2023:

Executive Directors
HITES

Mr. Wu Ming Gai (Chairman)
HRERES A (FE)

Mr. Chau Wai Hing
JE{& B 5 A

Non-Executive Directors
FHITES

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen
HERHELE

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES

Ms. Chan Man Yi

BREUE R+

Ms. Leung Yin Ting

REIE L

Mr. Wong Sze Lok

HERELE

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
will be held on 27 June 2024 which will be conducted by way of
poll.
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2023 AGM
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders of
the Company and the Board. An annual general meeting of the
Company shall be held in each year as may be determined by
the Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual general
meeting, shall be called a special general meeting (“SGM”). Set
out below are procedures by which shareholders may (a) convene
a SGM; (b) put forward enquires to the Board; and (c) put forward
proposals at general meetings. The procedures are subject to the
Bye-Laws and applicable legislation and regulation.

(a) Procedures for requisitioning a special general
meeting

Shareholder(s) of the Company (“Shareholder(s)”)
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying not less than 10% of the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company, on a vote
per share basis in the share capital of the Company,
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Directors or the company secretary of the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of business
specified in such requisition and add agenda of the
meeting so convened; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

(b) Procedures for putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct enquiries to the
Board. All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post
to the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong or by email to cs@cocoon.holdings for the
attention of the Board.

(c) Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company or not less
than 100 shareholders may, at their expense, provide
a written request to the attention of the company
secretary of the Company signed and deposited in
accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to

propose a person for election as Director is available
on the Company’s website.
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Shareholders’ inquires

The Company continues to promote investor relations and
enhance communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. The Company welcomes suggestions from
investors, stakeholders and the public.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividends to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
details of which are as follows:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Address: Shops 17M Floor
Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Email: hkinfo@computershare.com.hk
Tel: (852) 2862 8555 Fax: (852) 2865 0990

Shareholders and potential investors may, at any time, direct
enquiries to the Board. All enquiries shall be in writing and sent
by post to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong or by email to cs@cocoon.holdings for the attention of the
Board.

Constitutional documents

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were no
changes in any of the Company’s constitutional documents.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN
PREPARING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. The statement of
the Independent Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 72 to 78.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB AR

M McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 151,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matter we identified is valuation of
Level 3 financial instruments.

Key Audit Matter
BREETEE

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments

Refer to material accounting policy information in note 4, critical
accounting judgment and key estimates in note 5, relevant
disclosures in notes 7, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

We identified the valuation of Level 3 financial instruments as a key
audit matter due to the degree of complexity involved in valuing the
financial assets, the significance of the judgments and estimates
made by the management and the subjectivity in determination of
Level 3 financial instruments’ fair value given the lack of availability
of market-based data. The estimation process requires management
to make assumptions that include, amongst others, volatility,
comparable transactions, percentage of gold price and discount for
lack of control. The fair value of financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income and fair value through
profit or loss are classified as Level 3, amounted to approximately
HK$22,241,000 and HK$20,105,000 respectively as at 31 December
2023 as disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
The valuations of the aforesaid Level 3 financial instruments were
performed by an independent valuer.
HABE=ZEReRIANGLERNRBEREASTE RESSREE
HEFENERREE EEEFLNABRNGTNEEL  ARERZ
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEANAEERREETSZE
EZEXEMTAGHE
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Our audit procedures in relation to this matter

included:

BMBHELEFENSAEFBE:

- Obtaining an understanding of the valuation
techniques and the processes performed by
the independent valuer and the management’s
review process of the work of the independent
valuer with respect to the valuation of Level 3
financial instruments;

- BRBVEEMRTHHERTNER UEE
EEHBVAEMBFE="EReMIAKETL
TR B BIBAL

— Evaluating the competence, integrity and
independence of the independent valuer; and
their experience in conducting valuation of
similar financial instruments; and

- FIEBUAEMOEE N TEEMBLE: AR
Bl em T AETHENLR: &
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BERESNEE

74
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BRETSE(H)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEANAEERRETSZE

- Obtaining the respective independent
valuation reports and discussed with
management about the valuation of the Level
3 financial instruments, with the assistance
with the valuation experts: (i) reviewed the
appropriateness of the valuation techniques
and assumptions based on the industry
knowledge; (ii) tested the appropriateness
of the key inputs by independently checking
to the relevant external market data and/
or historical transactions which involved with
measured, indicated or inferred resources;
(iii) inquired and assessed the rationale of
the management’s judgments on the key
inputs, which are specific to the respective
investees; and (iv) reviewed the accuracy
of the calculations on the valuation model
and appropriateness of the disclosure in the

consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information in the Company’s annual report
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body in accordance with section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sham Tsz Leung Desmond

Practising Certificate Number: P08234

24/F, Siu On Centre

188 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEBEREMEEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+=-A=+—HLEFE

2023 2022
—E-=HF = T -
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i FEx F&T
Gross proceeds from disposals of HERSBELFMAEHIELRE
trading securities 62,032 8,880
Revenue N 9 1,399 4,552
Others income H b A 10 - 91
Other gains/(losses) Hithlzs,~ (BH8E) 11 58,456 (44,529)
Impairment losses for loan notes ERERRBEERE - (432)
Other operating expenses Hi @& m% (5,317) (5,702)
Finance costs B 75 A AR 12 (1,033) (2,059)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBLAIER (EE) 13 53,505 (48,079)
Income tax Fris i 14 - =
Profit/(loss) for the year FERA(FHR) 53,505 (48,079)
Other comprehensive expense, Hih 2B X
net of tax: (HBRBIR) :
Item that will not be reclassified to HEF T EET R B
profit or loss: HIIE A -
— Fair value losses on financial assets —RAAENE M2 E RS
at fair value through other FIBR ([ AR EREAM
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) ZHEWEINR]) 22 7l
BEMAABEER (2,662) (642)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive KAREEAELRER
income/(expense) for the year wmA (BR)REE
attributable to owners of the Company W (B ) M 50,843 (48,721)
Profit/(loss) per share (HK$) BRER (FE) (Bx)
Basic N 16 0.10 (0.10)
Diluted Ba 16 0.10 (0.10)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BN R

At 31 December 2023
RZEZ=F+=A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=F =T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KraE FET FHET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB REE 18 - -
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 19(a) - 202
- 202
Current assets REBEE
Deposits and prepayments e RIEMNRIE 20 338 791
Loan notes BERER 21 - 49,510
Financial assets at fair value through RARERERES R
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (MEAAEREREERYIER])
LERMEE 22 172,306 54,202
Financial assets at FVTOCI BARBEREME KSR
ZEMEE 23 22,241 24,903
Due from securities brokers JIE WL 78 5 48 42 5K OB 24 338 2,224
Cash and bank balances Be MB1TES 7,799 2,046
203,022 133,676
Current liabilities REBAEE
Other payables and accruals HEmEMRRETER 25 2,441 1,207
Lease liabilities HEAE 19(b) - 208
Promissory notes N 26 4,335 662
6,776 2,077
Net current assets RBEEFE 196,246 131,599
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAS 196,246 131,801
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Promissory notes N 26 10,000 13,500
NET ASSETS EEFE 186,246 118,301
Capital and reserves BEXR®EE
Share capital % 72X 28 60,434 51,801
Reserves ] 125,812 66,500
TOTAL EQUITY HRER 186,246 118,301
Net asset value per share BEREETE 31 HK$0.323% T HK$0.2378 7t

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 151 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

28 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chau Wai Hing
AEE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEnBEX

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE_Z-_=—F+_A=+—-HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LNGE LN
Financial
Share Share  Contributed assets at  Accumulated Total
capital  premium surplus  FVTOCI reserve losses reserve Total
RMERER
2ERETIR
Bx  RHEE BHRY CREENRE RitE#E BRHE i
30()i) 30(6)(i) 30(b)ii)
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T T THER T T TEL
At 1 January 2022 W-E--%-F—H 43,167 49,470 107,918 7,045 (63,197) 101,236 144,403
Loss and total comprehensive expenses ~ FRAEERZERIAE
for the year - 1 . (642) (48079)  (48721)  (48721)
Issue of shares on placement (note 28) RERRIRG (H228) 8,634 14,158 - - - 14,158 22,192
Cost of issuing new shares under RERERTHROER
placement (note 28) (fi#28) - (173) - - - (173) (173)
Changes in equity for the year FEEREES 8,634 13,985 - (642) (48,079)  (34,736)  (26,102)
At 31 December 2022 RZZ-—§+-A=1+—H 51,801 63,455 107,918 6,403 (111,276) 66,500 118,301
At 1 January 2023 W_E-=F—f—H 51,801 63,455 107,918 6,403 (111,276) 66,500 118,301
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRFRZERZER
for the year - - - (2,662) 53,505 50,843 50,843
Issue of shares on placement (note 28) RERETRR (Ai28) 8,633 8,634 - - - 8,634 17,267
Cost of issuing new shares under RERER{THRNER
placement (note 28) (fii228) - (165) - - - (165) (165)
Changes in equity for the year TEERRE 8,633 8,469 - (2,662) 53,505 59,312 67,945
At 31 December 2023 R-F-_=f#+-A=+—-H 60,434 71,924 107,918 3,741 (57,771) 125,812 186,246
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+_A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E-= T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
bt FEx FHET
Cash flows from operating activities EEIBHELENEERE
Profit/(loss) before tax &f A= R, (E518) 53,505 (48,079)
Adjustments for: o EE
Interest income FEHA (702) (4,333)
Finance costs RS 1,033 2,059
Depreciation of property, plant and W BERBETE
equipment - 1
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 202 284
Fair value (gain)/loss on BARE AEZEN
financial assets at FVTPL TREEZANE
(Wa=) B8 (54,792) 37,578
(Gain)/loss on disposal of loan notes HERRRSR T
in exchange for listed/unlisted 3F£ﬁ%%ﬁ’ﬂ%%’(
securities = (k) &8 32(a)(i) (3,336) 5,783
Impairment losses on loan notes EREBREEE - 432
Operating loss before working capital EEECEHR LKL
changes E1a (4,090) (6,275)
Increase in financial assets of FVTPL BRAREFABZEZ
EREE (9,764) (5,397)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and e RIEMRIE
prepayments wA (&) 453 (509)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due fﬂﬁ( R SR
from securities brokers w A, (3 h0) 1,886 (2,079)
Decrease in amounts due to FEH B 5 40 SRIER
securities brokers - (1,087)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables BN TR RETER
and accruals #in,/ Cmd) 1,234 (859)
Cash used in operations KERmAZE® (10,281) (16,206)
Interest received JE W T 2 - 2,400
Interest paid [=ERFIES) - (77)
Net cash used in operating activities RETEAFRS (10,281) (13,883)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= Ao — 1§
MEREMER
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+_A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E-= = T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET

Cash flows from financing activities METBZ2RERE

Proceeds from issue of shares on placement FRE R ITIRMD AT 8 T8 17,267 22,792
Cost of issuing new shares under placement  RIEE S THRNE A (165) (173)
Principal portion of lease payments HEFRBEAEH D (208) (282)
Repayment of promissory notes AN RIRER - (6,420)
Interest paid [RENF SN (856) (1,605)
Finance lease charges paid ENRERE (4) (18)
Net cash from financing activities MmETBMEBRSFE 16,034 14,294
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RE&RHEZFHEENFE 5,753 411
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year £ & NIE & F58 2,046 1,635
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FERBERBELEE 7,799 2,046
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERBSEHEIM

Cash and bank balances & MIBTTHE 7,799 2,046
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

1.

84

GENERAL INFORMATION

Cocoon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered office
is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
is Room 14A, Fortune House, 61 Connaught Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong. The principal activities of the Company
are investments in securities listed on recognised stock
exchanges and unlisted investments with a potential for
earnings growth and capital appreciation.

The investment objective of the Company is to achieve an
enhanced earnings stream and capital appreciation from its
investments.

The Company has adopted the following investment policies:

(i) the Company may, at its sole discretion, invest in
any securities, listed or unlisted, including warrants,
money market instruments, bank deposits, currency
investments, commodities, options, convertible
securities, futures contracts, loan notes and precious
metals or any other forms of investments in securities
which would enable the Company to achieve good
income or capital appreciation.

(ii) the Company may, for hedging purposes only, buy,
write or sell warrants, covered warrants, options or
traded options on its underlying investments. The
Company may also buy or sell futures contracts on
stock indices or shares (if any) as a means to hedge
against adverse price movements of its investments.

(iii) in order to hedge against interest rate risks, the
Company may enter into forward interest rate
agreements, interest rates and US treasury bond
futures contracts and interest rate swaps. The
Company may also, for hedging purpose only,
purchase and write (sell) put or call options or options
on futures on interest rates. The Company will only
engage in transactions in options and futures which
are traded on a recognised securities or futures
exchange.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

(iv) cash pending investment, reinvestment or
distribution will be placed in bank deposits in any
currency, obligations of the United States or Hong
Kong governments, their respective agencies or
instrumentalities, or securities and other instruments
denominated in any currency issued by various
governments or international development agencies.

The Company may not:

(i)  either on its own or in conjunction with any connected
person, take legal, or effective, management control
of any company or other entity in which it invests or
controls more than 30% (or such other percentage as
may from time to time be specified in the Takeovers
Code as being the level for triggering a mandatory
general offer) of the voting rights in such company or
other entity; and

(ii) invest in any company or other entity if as a result,
more than 20% of the Company’s net asset value as at
the date of such investment would be invested in any
one such company or other entity.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which in collective term includes all
International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”)
and Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
are discussed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+=-A=+—HLEFE

—REN (&)

(iv) BHEE BREXDRZASEEHRR
EAEEZRTER ZAREBBM
EEAHPIREMZER Kb 2 EBUT
HERR B R HPIA BTN E R REN
ZEHREMT A

YNGR SCE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3.

ADOPTION OF AMENDMENTS TO REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs and
amendments that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group.

Application of amendments to IFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs
issued by the IASB for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2023 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

IFRS 17 (including the October
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to IFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Presentation of Financial
Statements and Making
Materiality Judgement —
Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates
and Errors — Definition of

Accounting Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12

Income Tax — Deferred Tax
related to Assets and

86

Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Tax — International

Tax Reform

Except as described below, the application of the above
revised IFRSs in the current period had no material impact
on the Group’s results and financial position.

Amendments to IAS 1 require entities to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it
can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to
IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
The Group has disclosed the material accounting policy
information in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. The amendments did not have any impact on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in
the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF AMENDMENTS TO REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not applied amendments to standards
and interpretation that have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2023.
The amendments to standards and interpretation include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Amendments to IAS 1 — Non-current
Liabilities with covenants
Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7
— Supplier Finance Arrangements

Amendments to IAS 21 - Lack of
exchangeability

Amendments to IFRS 16 — Lease Liability
in a Sales and Leaseback

Amendments to IFRS 10 and |IAS 28 -
Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture

Effective for accounting
periods beginning
on or after

1 January 2024

1 January 2024

1 January 2024

1 January 2025

1 January 2024

To be determined
by the IASB

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact

on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3.

88

ADOPTION OF AMENDMENTS TO REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism

In June 2022, the Hong Kong SAR Government (the
“Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”),
which will come into effect from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition
Date”). Once the Amendment Ordinance takes effect, an
employer can no longer use any of the accrued benefits
derived from its mandatory contributions to mandatory
provident fund (“MPF”) scheme to reduce the long service
payment (“‘LSP”) in respect of an employee’s service
from the Transition Date (the abolition of the “offsetting
mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect of the service
before the Transition Date will be calculated based on the
employee’s monthly salary immediately before the Transition
Date and the years of service up to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications
of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong” that provides accounting guidance relating
to the offsetting mechanism and the abolition of the
mechanism. In particular, the guidance indicates that
entities may account for the accrued benefits derived from
mandatory MPF contributions that are expected to be used
to reduce the LSP payable to an employee as deemed
contributions by that employee towards the LSP.

Applying this approach, upon the enactment of the
Amendment Ordinance in June 2022, it is no longer
permissible to apply the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 that previously allowed such deemed
contributions to be recognised as reduction of service
cost (negative service cost) in the period the contributions
were made. Instead, these deemed contributions should be
attributed to periods of service in the same manner as the
gross LSP benefit. The directors of the Company assessed
and the Amendment Ordinance has no material impact on
the Group’s LSP liability and staff cost. Hence, no material
impact on the Group’s results and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain
financial assets that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below:

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties, to determine whether it has
control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is

classified as held for sale).

(b) Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair

values are determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

(i)

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability. After initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term. The Group present right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities on a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

92

(c) Leases (Continued)

(i) The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

(d) Recognition and derecognition of financial

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED HEXS#ZREBR A A

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(e)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified
into amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the financial asset
at FVTOCI reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as
other income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(e)

Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. For financial
instruments other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from
the Group’s ordinary course of business are presented
as revenue.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED HEXS#ZREBR A A

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under IFRSs.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or
at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including amounts due to securities
brokers, other payables, accruals and promissory
notes are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(i)

)

Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(k)

U

COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED # B XS #ZRAER L T

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable. Such grants are presented under
“other income”.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit and at the time of the transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary difference.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

U

(m)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Impairment of financial assets

Impairment under Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”)
model

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
IFRS 9 (including other deposits, loan notes, due from
securities brokers and cash and bank balances). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of
the respective financial instrument.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EBEAREHHERER (H)
INFORMATION (Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(m) EWMEENRE (F)

Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

The Group always recognises ECL for deposits, loan
notes, due from securities brokers and cash and bank
balances, and measures the ECL for portfolios of
deposits, loan notes and due from securities brokers
that share similar economic risk characteristics. The
ECL on these assets are estimated using an analysis
of assets by risk level of customers and apply a
probability-weighted estimate of the credit losses
within the relevant risk type. The probability-weighted
estimates of the credit losses is determined based
on the default rate from external international credit
rating agency, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+_A=+—HLEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EAREFTHEEH (E)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(m) EMEEMNRE (&)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from financial analysts and governmental
bodies, as well as consideration of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information
that relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(m)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrate
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

A financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if (i) the financial instrument has a low risk
of default (i.e. no default history); (ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term; and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a financial asset to
have low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of “investment grade” in accordance with the
globally understood definition or if an external rating
is not available, the asset has an external rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

4.

EXSTBERESN (H)

(m) EWMEENRE (F)

EEEBRAIEE M (&)

N BT A R A0 - fiw & 49 15 58 HR
HBE30H AIAKERR —HETBREEN
EE R B ¥ R IARE AEE M &
HAEEAEBRAIXFHENEZERILIFN
I o

BEMLAL HeBRTARESAME
EARERRKE UAKRBRZLLH
T BL A 5 BB 15 40 6 5 A R K O
0.

WA RTHERE MR TATEERE
EERBRE: ()2 TANZHRBRBIE
(FIamERQESL) (i) FERAFRAK
EANIHBETEANRERERE K
(iii) B R R IR R TR Z F Al aE
BARVHSBERABTEANRASRER
ENEN -ZERHEERBE2RAATEE
BAIBEETRRERF ) K0 &
SNERRT AR - BB EIN BRI AR TR
AIXEERSEBEEREFEERR R
R S F F RN R i BB B H
15 o

AEBTHEERURECEERR S SR
ZIRINAT AR ER R R EE R
fE B AT - #E M R IR A B 1R B RE 59 10 5K IR
BEAEEEERRBEEM-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z-_=F+-A=+—HItFEE
4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4. BAESTHHEESR (&)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(m) EWMEERE (&)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria
are generally not recoverable:

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group also
considers that default has occurred when the
instrument is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

- The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

BRI EE

AEERR HRBELRRANTEUT
R JE W SRR — R EVE MR E - A TR
ARABEERRERNSBRENEM

- WREBEFERMPBERE K

- RBERKEIIFRRESHEFR
RABBATAAEREGEREA (2
EARKE)ZBBEER (T RA
SEFAFBANEMERR)

ANam A AT A0 - fis T A B HR AR 90 H
AEBENRBRREBEENEMN BKRIELRE
BREARAXKHENRARRRNENR
EFREE -

1FEHRER T 8 EE

ERMEEE-HINLEH (HZEeRE
EfFARREREBRAMNZE) ELE
REREARE- EREELREERE
MNEEEREHEN T EHNAIBREE:

- BOANIRGEFEEERMBR

e

- ERAH WMERIEEE

- ERBAXZHFUBREMENL
BRANEH XHZHFHOBRRAR
RHZBFREBKAREMBERT
TEERHNEEMRME:

— RPEUFAREEWEREMG K
B4 5

~ ARMBAESHZSMEENG
BB TEER -

Annual Report 2023 &% 103



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, EBEAREHHERER (H)
INFORMATION (Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(m) EWMEENRE (F)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade and
loan receivables, when the amounts are past due over
one year, whichever is earlier. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made
are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(n)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

Where lifetime ECL is measured to cater for cases
where evidence of significant increase in credit risk
at the individual instrument level may not yet be
available. The financial instruments are The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account, except for investments in
debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI,
for which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce
the carrying amount of the financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY ESTIMATES

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors are required to make
judgements (other than those involving estimations) that
have a significant impact on the amounts recognised and
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgments that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(@)

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets
depends on the results of the solely payment of
principal and interest test and the business model
test. The Group determines the business model at a
level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. This assessment includes judgment
reflecting all relevant evidence including how the
performance of the assets is evaluated and their
performance measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed
and how the directors are compensated. The Group
monitors financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI that are derecognised prior to their
maturity. Monitoring is part of the Group’s continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which
the remaining financial assets are held continues to
be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether
there has been a change in business model and so
a prospective change to the classification of those
assets.

e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B

5.

108 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSEZERAERA A

2T

=EE+ZRA=+T—RHBIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Equity investment in private entity designated at
financial assets at FVTOC/

As mentioned in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had subscribed 20% equity
interest of an Anguilla incorporated private entity,
Perfect Path Limited (the “Perfect Path”). Despite
the Group holds 20% of the voting power in Perfect
Path, the unlisted equity investment is designated at
financial assets at FVTOCI. The Group does not have
significant influence over Perfect Path as (i) the Group
has no right to be represented in the board of directors
of Perfect Path; and (ii) the remaining equity interest,
being 80% equity interest of Perfect Path is owned by
another single shareholder other than the Group.

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month
ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2
or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when
its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. IFRS 9 does not define what constitutes
a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing
whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly
increased the Group takes into account qualitative
and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward
looking information.

5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(d)

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments —
unlisted investments

The unlisted investments of the Group designated at
financial assets at FVTOCI and FVTPL have been
valued under market approach using the unobservable
inputs such as prices and other relevant information
generated by market transaction, volatility, percentage
of gold price and discount of lack of control. These
valuations require the management to make such
estimation, and hence they are subject to uncertainty.
Whilst the Group considers these valuations are the
best estimates, the ongoing Russia-Ukraine War and
disruptions in energy and commodity markets have
results in greater market volatility and may affect the
business of the investee. Changes in assumptions
relating to these factors could result in material
adjustments to the fair value of these instruments.
The fair value of the unlisted investments at FVTOCI
and FVTPL at 31 December 2023 were approximately
HK$22,241,000 and HK$20,105,000 respectively (2022:
HK$24,903,000 and HK$24,445,000 respectively).
Further details are set out in notes 22 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

5.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, interest rate
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The board of directors review
and agree policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as certain of the Group’s cash and bank balances
and listed equity securities are denominated in United
State dollar (“US$”).

The Group considers the risk exposure to foreign
currency fluctuation is limited and insignificant as long
as the HK$ remains pegged to the US$. This analysis
is performed on the same basis for the prior year.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

(b) Price risk

As set out in notes 22 and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s investments
securities were designated at financial assets at
FVTPL and FVTOCI are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Therefore, the Group’s
investments in equity securities are exposed to equity
price risk. The directors manage this exposure by
monitoring the change of market prices of the equity
from time to time, and by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk. As at 31 December
2023, if the fair value of the Group’s investments
designated at financial assets at FVTPL had been
5% higher/lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss before tax would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$8,615,000 (2022:
HK$2,710,000).
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6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of deposits due from securities
brokers and cash and bank balances included in the
statement of financial position represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the
Group’s financial assets.

The Group did not hold any loan note, for the year
ended 31 December 2023. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group has certain exposure to concentrations of
credit risk. As at 31 December 2022, the Group has
significant concentrations of credit risk as the Group’s
100% of the carrying amount of loan notes were
subscribed from two issuers.

The total gross carrying amounts loan notes by
geographical region are as follows:

6.

e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+=-A=+—HLEFE

MEERER (&)

(c)

FERR

EREF R L R ARR S MIRITHERE
MHERARAMBENEDEELSLAEES
HemMEENKKEERR -

BEe-_T_=%+-_A=+—BItEE"
AEBTEFEEMNERZER - R_F
T+ A=+ B AEE@EEBEET
FEERBEFHNRER R _F+=
AR=+—H BARASEEREREKEE
H100% M B EHITARE AEEBEEE
EREEES -

rpRIASHERZBEETARAT

2023 2022
—E-=EF -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FH& T
By geographical region i [E 5 5
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) FZEARAME ([FFE]) - 20,118
Netherlands il - 30,903
- 51,021
In order to minimise credit risk, the Group had BELEERR AEBEEZRETKE

delegated its finance team to develop and assign the
Group’s credit risk grading to categories exposures
according to their degree of risk of default. With refer
to the public available financial information and the
historical repayment records to determine the counter
parities whether had significant increase in credit risk
individually. The Group’s exposure and the credit rating
of its counterparties were continuously monitored
and the aggregate value of transactions concluded
was spread amongst approved counterparties. The
ECL rates were determined based on default rate
from external international credit rating agency and
were adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of Loan Notes’ issuers to redeem their Loan
Notes upon maturity.

As the Group’s based on the default rate from external
international credit rating agency was not further
distinguished between the Group’s different debtors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BKEMER (&)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) EERR (&)
The Group’s current credit risk grading framework AEBEREEERRTIFERBIEUTE
comprises the following categories: Al
Category Definition Basis of recognising ECL
5l e S EHEEBENEREE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not 12-month ECL
have any past-due amounts
R RSEFEHRBIK - B I & EA@ BHRIE TEAEHEEEE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in credit risk since Lifetime ECL not credit impaired
initial recognition
e~ EE R B 7)1A 8 52 DA 2R K 18 32 >HEBREEEE BEERE
In default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit impaired Lifetime ECL credit impaired
EH EEBRBEERFEERE HEHEEER FERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
3 ERBRABHAGRENBRE NEEBRER F&EX  MEERE

For deposits, the directors of the Company make
individual assessments on the recoverability of
deposits. There was no impairment of deposits under
ECL was recognised for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

e [ 3 I8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M| RMEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for loan
notes as at 31 December:

BNER (CREH)

Current (not past due)

6.

For the year ended 31 December 2023
Bz

—E_=Ff+-A=+—HLEE

MEERER (&)
(c) FERE (&)
TEREHREBAKRERT-_A=+—-82

2022
=ER = ==

Expected
loss rate
T8 HA 18
%

%

2.96%

S 5 o
%M%

2022
=H e alli=
Gross
carrying
amount
HAREE
HK$'000
FHET

51,021

BEERRKEREEEBRNER

2022
B e — dE

Loss
allowance
BB
HK$’000
FET

(1,511)

Expected loss rates were based on default rate from
external international credit rating agency. These rates
were adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected
lives of the loan notes.

The credit risk on amounts due from securities
brokers is limited because the counterparties are well-
established securities broker firms in Hong Kong which
are subject to compliance requirement under Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

BHERETDNERIIBEREEFREE
BHNEBEXBH -ZFH
SBEBEZ BREMLEMRR BEAMR
AR AEEHERZBRERFHALEN
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

(c) Credit risk (Continued)
Loan notes

MERBREE (&)
(c) FERR (&)

EHZEE

As at 31 December 2022
RZEZZF+=ZA=+—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1REEL F2REL FIME BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET FHT
Loan notes and interest receivables, gross & X E#H I BRI 5 4% 30,903 20,118 = 51,021
Less: Loss allowance W R (388) (1,123) - (1,511)
Net carrying amount REEFE 30,515 18,995 - 49,510
Movement in the allowances for loan notes and interest BB AT ENERZE & EWF S #
receivables measured at amortised cost: e E)
General approach
—BF%
Lifetime
12-month Lifetime ECL credit
ECL ECL impaired Total
2HEH
1218 B 7B 5 ZHEY FEF#E
FERE FEFE GEHE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABT FET FHT FHT
At 1 January 2022 e — e FEaH] 81 2,309 - 2,390
Derecognised upon disposal HERK TR - (1,311) - (1,311)
Provision for ECLs BHEEBERE 307 125 = 432
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 H=-Z-—F+=-A=+—H
M= ==k e 388 1,123 - 1.9
Derecognised upon disposal HE K& R (388) (1,123) = (1,511)

At 31 December 2023

R-B-=f£+=ZA=1+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s loan notes, amounts due from securities
brokers, lease liabilities and promissory notes bear
interests at fixed interest rates and therefore are
subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group’s cash flow exposure to interest-rate risk
arises from its bank deposits. These bank deposits
bear interests at floating rates varied with the then
prevailing market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group does not have
other significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities
at the end of reporting period, its income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. Sensitivity analysis on cash
flow interest rate risk has not been presented as
the reasonably possible changes in market interest
rate will not have significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BKEMER (&)
(e) Liquidity risk (e) FENMERBS
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current REBEMER AT HAEERENH & 18 B R &
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that BeZmX UHEREAREHRSHE
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its LmeHEMRRBRHESTE

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted REBOETEERMEBRESAHRNTER
cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial REeEREMENI AT LOT

liabilities is as follows:

On demand

and less than Between Between
1year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years
BERK

PR—F —IE i —ERE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAET

At 31 December 2023 R=ZZB=-=f+=ZHF=+—H
Other payables and accruals i & {5 50 E & =T & A 2,441 - -
Promissory notes AR 4,586 10,800 -
7,027 10,800 -

At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+=-HA=+—H
Other payables and accruals  HERREKEFTER 1,207 = =
Lease liabilities HEAE 216 = =
Promissory notes A E 1,029 4,413 10,800
2,452 4,413 10,800
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BEEMER (&)
(f) Categories of financial instruments at 31 () R+t=-A=+—BHEMIAEEH
December
2023 2022
—E—-= ZEE =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHET
Financial assets: cREE:
Financial assets at amortised cost RESRKAFTENEREE 8,191 53,834
Financial assets at FVTPL BRARBEBRERTIRZcMEE 172,306 54,202
Financial assets at FVTOCI BEAREREMEERZEYIRZ
TREE 22,241 24,903
Financial liabilities: cRasE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost LB KAFEN SR EE 16,776 15,369
(g) Fair values (9) 2RfE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets REMBIRARANIRMAEE SR E E
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated SRBENRECHEELESBENAR
statement of financial position approximate their (ER
respective fair values.
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AAREFE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement
date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

ARERENEZ2EEGFERRLENAEFR
P HE-—REEMERIAEERE —HA
% BEXNNER- U TAREAERERER
RAAERE R KR AEFEFTE A fE KM
BAEE D R=EER:

F-BREAE: AKEEFEAEMRE
R E E KA B ERRE
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A BEN B AE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AREFE (&)
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and AEERNREARESHEHEZRAEHEEH
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the BEREESCNAHEREAREE =GR
event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. AR — (@ -
(a) Disclosures of level fair value hierarchy at 31 (@) RT+=ZB=+—HHNAAEBIEE
December
2023
—E-=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F-BR HF-BR F=EX nE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TER TERT TE=R

Recurring fair value measurements: BEMDAABETE:
Financial assets at FVTPL BEOREREBERIEZSRERE
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BEEREE LTERES
and the United States 152,201 - - 152,201
Unlisted equity securities in United States ~ EBI3F F m g & 5 - - 20,105 20,105
Financial assets at FVTOCI BEAREREMEZEKESE
ZEMEE
Unlisted equity investments FLEMERESF - - 22,241 22,241
Total recurring fair value measurements KEMANREAEEE 152,201 - 42,346 194,547
2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-EBR F_ER F=ZEKX e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET TET THET
Recurring fair value measurements: REMDIAETE:
Financial assets at FVTPL BAAERBREFIRZEREE
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BAERER LRSS
and the United States 29,757 - - 29,757
Unlisted equity securities in United States ~ EFJE FH R &S = — 24,445 24,445
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAAERE M2 E KRR
ZEMEE
Unlisted equity investments FLMERES = - 24903 24,903
Total recurring fair value measurements RENRAEGEEE 29,757 - 49348 79,105
The fair value of financial assets at FVTPL classified PEAEE—EBRNZRAALBERIEZR TR
as level 1 is based on quoted bid price in an active JEBMEEMNAABNIREERMS L/
market. H(E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value
based on Level 3

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
there were no transfer of financial assets from Level 3
to other levels of hierarchy.

The following table presents the movements in Level 3
instruments of the Group during the year.

7.

e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFE

/L\\ ﬁ—l_i(nﬁ)

(b) BE=ZBRAAEFENEENHER
RBEE_Z_=ZFR_Z__F+_A4
“+—HIEFE YEE=-FEINEHE
EEBREHMER-
TRIBMRAFEAN AEBE=ZEART
B &g

2023
—B=-=
Equity
Unlisted equity investments

securities held
for trading in

designated at
financial assets

United States at FVTOCI Total
REBR ETARAAE
BERSZ REt2ZEKRRE
Z¥ELEH FIRZEMEE
BEEH MERRE k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET
At 1 January n—H—H 24,445 24,903 49,348
Total gains or losses recognised ERERBNEKEE
— in profit or loss (included in revenue - REHE (BERKRA K
and other gains and losses) Hiplams REE) (4,340) - (4,340)
— in other comprehensive income N T & - (2,662) (2,662)
At 31 December R+=-A=+—H 20,105 22,241 42,346
2022
=5 = =
Equity
Unlisted equity investments
securities held designated at
for trading in financial assets
United States at FVTOCI Total
REBE EBERRAAE
RERXS REMZEKE
ZHET  IRzZEREE
BaHES BRI E R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT
At 1 January R—A—H - 25,545 25,545
Additions NE 24,445 - 24,445
Total gains or losses recognised BRRAKSHEE
— in profit or loss (included in revenue - RER (BERKA K
and other gains and losses) Hith s R E1E) - - =
— in other comprehensive income - REME2EKE - (642) (642)
At 31 December N = 24,445 24,903 49,348
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-_T =

=EE+ZRA=+T—RHBIFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(c)

120 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSERAER A A

7.

DMREFE (&)

Disclosure of valuation process used by (c) BEAKEFEANGERERUARR
the Group and valuation techniques and +TZA=+—HAREFEREADN
inputs used in fair value measurements at fEEF M@ AE:
31 December:
The Group’s directors are responsible for the fair AREBESEENBREMTNEENE
value measurements of assets and liabilities required BARBENE BREFEF=ZBEXAABENE-
for financial reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair
value measurements.
For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group EHEZBAAAEFE ASECER
engaged independent valuation experts with BEERAEXEEREGOKBRNBE LEE
recognised professional qualifications and recent HXRETHE-
experience to perform the valuations.
Level 3 fair value
measurements Fair value
EZBRAAEHE ARE
2023 2022
—Eg-=ZE —FT-—fF
Effect on fair value
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range  for increase of inputs ~ HK$’000 HK$'000
BARIRE MY
fi i fRER TABZHA &E AQAAENTE TET FET
Assets
BE
Financial asset at FVTOCI
BAAEREM2EKRESIEZ
cRAE
Unlisted equity investments Market Approach — Discount of lack of control 20%  Decrease 22,241 24,903
Comparable transaction &2 EH (B (2022: 20%) AL
method (=2==
20% )
FEMERESH 5% - TR 5% % of gold price 6.5% Decrease
SEBNL (2022: 8.8%) &N
(= T
8.8%)
Cost of disposal 0.3%  Decrease
HEKA (2022: 0.3%) AL
(===
0.3%)
Financial asset at FVTPL
BAAEREM2EKRTIRL
Unlisted equity securities Market Approach — Latest  Volatility (17.9%)  Decrease 20,105 24,445
transaction method KE (2022: 2.21%)  ®L

JELEmEEES 5% - BRHRHA




8.

9.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+=-A=+—HLEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. oHEH
(a) Operating segment information (a) R&EDFBER
For management purposes of resource association, PREREABEEEN AEBEMNEBLE
the Group’s business activity is organised into a single BEBNE —KEED I BRERERR
operating segment, being investments in securities BERGAEMz2ESFREBRANER K
listed on recognised stock exchanges and unlisted BEREEBZENNFELTRE - Bt &N
investments with a potential for earnings growth and ERGSERZE2IWEIBEEDHER -
capital appreciation. Accordingly, only entity-wide
disclosure are presented and no operating segment
information to be presented.
(b) Geographical information (b) EEH
The Company’s revenue is solely generated from, and BEAEERBAEENREMEM  AQ
non-current assets are located in, Hong Kong and AREE2HBREEBRER  BFERBDE
United States, based on the location of the relevant EHMRE -
Group entities’ operations
Revenue Non-current assets
W =% FRBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-= —E-F —E=-= =55 T —#E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHT FEx FHT
Hong Kong BB 1,399 4,552 - 202
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, RBEZZT=-_=Fk=_FT=Z=_F+=A
there were no dividend income from the Group’s =+—BLEFER AEERNIFELETERE
unlisted investments. W EERE W
REVENUE 9. WA
2023 2022
—E=-= — T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTEx FH&T
Interest income from loan notes EREENFE WA 702 4,333
Dividend income from trading securities EERAARERERZERIERZ
designated at FVTPL RPBEHFMBREWA 697 219
1,399 4,552
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

10. OTHERS INCOME 10. HMW A

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-__F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Government grants (Note) BT RG (MaE) - 72
Sundry income BB A - 19
- 91

Note: it -

Government grants in respect of the wage subsidy which was
granted under The Government of Employment Support Scheme

in Hong Kong were recognised at the time the Group fulfilled the

relevant granting criteria. There were no unfulfilled conditions or E b

contingencies relating to these government grants for the year

ended 2022.

11. OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES)

11. Hibz  (B5E)

HEAERIF R EZFFFEIRT TE R BT
170 B IO 75 62 B 2 40 A 4 B IR 1F B T DA RERR -
T _FFFEZFHAFHMBBEREXGEREN

BHEZ

2023 2022
—EBC-=F —E-—
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FE&T
Unrealised fair value gains/(losses) on RARBEREZPRIEZcREE
financial assets at FVTPL: MARBIE A RERE (EBE)
— listed securities - FES 54,869 (37,578)
Net realised gains/(losses) on disposals of ZARERE=HTIIE L CEEE
financial assets at FVTPL: MEBERLNE R (FEB)
R
— listed securities - EEE3 251 (1,168)
Net gains/(losses) on financial assets BERARBEREBZEPIERZ
at FVTPL SREEWRR (E8)%F8E 55,120 (38,746)
Gain/(loss) on disposals of loan notes in HERRRE ETFEEMES
exchange for listed/unlisted securities VERZEKE S (BER) 3,336 (5,783)
3,336 (5,783)
58,456 (44,529)
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31

December 2023

HE-_Z-_=F+_A=+—HLEE
FINANCE COSTS 12. BB ER
2023 2022
—E—-= =ed=—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Imputed interest on promissory notes AN ERHEF B 1,029 1,964
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEBEHNE 4 18
Interest on other borrowings H A {8 KR S - 77
1,033 2,059
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 13. BRBLATRER (E8)

Profit/(loss) before tax has been arrived at after charging
the following:

BEAER, (B1R) EMBR TS RER:

2023 2022
—E=-= ===

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

Auditor’s remuneration 1% 256 B 368 350

Management fees ERE 774 535

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - B E LR ETE - 1

Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 202 284
Employee benefits expenses included EERMNAX (BEEEME)

directors’ remuneration:

— Salaries and allowance - 5B RER 881 1,175

— Contributions to defined contribution plan* - RE TSR 21 28

Total employee benefits expenses EERAFZ L% 902 1,203

There was no forfeited contribution in respect of the defined
contribution plan available at 31 December 2023 and 2022
to reduce future contributions. There was no outstanding
contribution to the plan at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

R-BE-—=FR-FT-_—_F+=-A=+—H"
& RE M ARG 8 2 B IR W R AT A E R A R 2R

HRA-RZT=FE=FT==
H IR i R BT szt Bl 2 5k e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+_A=+—HLEE

14. INCOME TAX 14.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the consolidated financial statements since the Group
has sufficient tax losses brought forward to set off against
current year’s assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: no estimated assessable profit).

Reconciliation between income tax and the Group’s profit/
(loss) before tax at applicable tax rate is set out below:

g%t
BE_Z_=F+-A=+—HLEFE ARAE
SEFRRMABEATHBEREAFENE
A (Z T —F : WERMFEFHRAE) -
AUTEESESVHERRATREBFEHE
e

B EAEERBAMEFE ZBRBATES
(EBE) ZHERDT

2023 2022
—E-=H —E-_—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FHET

Profit/(loss) before tax B Bt AT R, (E548) 53,505 (48,079)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before tax, BREADEF, (BB Z8H

calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax HIBREBF ST E16.5%

rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) —E - _fF:16.5% )& 8,828 (7,933)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible REBME TAENAEZ 2

for tax purpose B 240 373
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BARMBANT K2 (115) (12)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBBEEENT B LE 2,516 7,501
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not MERERERTEEER

previously recognised ik (11,469) =
Tax effect of temporary differences not AEREREZENTRB 2

recognised - 71
Income tax P 15 Bt - =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+=-A=+—HLEFE

15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 15. EB 2
(a) Details of directors’ emoluments are as (a) ESHFMFHBOT:
follows:
2023
—g-=
Contributions
Salaries and to defined
Fees allowances contribution plan Total
e FeREE REMNGEMR Rl
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TET TERT TERT TExT
Executive Directors HITES
Wu Ming Gai ik - 151 8 159
Chau Wai Hing [B R & - 264 13 277
Non-executive Director FHTES
William Keith Jacobsen("! ERAEM 88 - - 88
Independent non-executive Directors BIEHTES
Chan Man Yi BB 126 - - 126
Leung Yin Ting REfE 126 - - 126
Wong Sze Lok BERE 126 - - 126
466 415 21 902
2022
-
Contributions
Salaries and to defined
Fees allowances contribution plan Total
ik ekl REHEZGHEER ek
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FHT FHT
Executive Directors BTES
Wu Ming Gai ik - 151 8 159
Chan Carman Wing Yan® PR K IR @) - 119 6 125
Chau Wai Hing [ 2 & - 242 12 254
Non-executive Directors FHTES
William Keith Jacobsen("! ERAEM® 151 - - 151
Wong Chung Yan Sammy®) EHCO 82 - - 82
Independent non-executive Directors BIEHTES
Chan Man Yi PR 126 - - 126
Leung Yin Ting RIIE 126 = = 126
Wong Sze Lok BRE 126 - - 126
611 512 26 1,149
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-_T =

=EE+ZRA=+T—RHBIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

126 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED #EXSERAERA A

Details of directors’ emoluments are as
follows: (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-
executive directors’ and independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services as directors of the Company.

U] William Keith Jacobsen resigned as a non-executive
director on 30 June 2023.

@ Chan Carman Wing Yan resigned as an executive

director and chief executive officer on 20 June 2022.

®) Wong Chung Yan Sammy retired as a non-executive
director on 17 June 2022.

Note: There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration or
payment for compensation for loss of services during

the both years.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include five (2022:
five) Directors whose emoluments were disclosed
above.

During the year, there was no discretionary cash bonus
paid or payables to the Directors nor any of the five
highest paid individuals (2022: nil).

Directors’ material interests in transaction,
arrangement or contract

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other significant transaction,
arrangement and contract in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

15. EEZ2HM (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

EEHFM=EOT: (&)

EXFRATES 2HM IR R SRR
EEARABRAEEEBHABR 2 RE T X
e EXFIRFFRITEERBILIFNTE
EZHFMTIRERERRREEM A -

M ERHER-_T-=F A= t+HETHE
WITE=E-

@  BREMR_ZE__FRA-_tHEREH
TEERITHREE -

® BEHRCRZEZ_F A+ tBHEMFHE

Wit MERNLEFHESHEARERR

ERM SR SR ERERER -

TEBREHFAL

REAXEELEESFALRELE (=
T__F RR)EFE HMEEELXHE

o

B

RER TEENKENTFEETNRBER
SRAFAEZRRFALT(ZE =
) o

R

BERS REASHTINERE

xt

B b

BRiar e MR M E3IMEEE I N F
RAFANEAKHE BEEREARRRE
BOHEFR =T BEARREZREEZNH
BOREGEPAEERAMBENERN RS
ZEAFEXBZHEMEARS RHERE
e
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFE

PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE 16. wmHL (EE)
The calculation of the basic profit/(loss) per share $’A BB AEMERERNEBEIZA TSR
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the i
following data:
Profit/(loss) wFL(EE)
2023 2022
—E-= =
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit/(loss) for the purposes of BREARR (EE)HES
basic profit/(loss) per share FTARER (&) 53,505 (48,079)
Number of shares BRHHB
2023 2022
—E-= o
’000 ‘000
T T i
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of RFHIE 17K LB
year 518,007 431,672
Effect of shares issued on placement REERZETRNOZE
(note 28) (Ht#£28) 40,447 39,028
Weighted average number of ordinary BREREGF, (BE)TEHR
shares for the purpose of calculating FIT A A9 3 38 AR 89 N 2 25 21
basic profit/(loss) per share 558,454 470,700

For the purpose of diluted profit/(loss) per share, no
adjustment has been made to the basic profit/(loss) per
share amount presented for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 as there were no potential dilutive ordinary
shares outstanding during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors (the “Board”) does not recommend
the payment of any dividend for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

17.

HRERBEEETN (BRME BE2_FT-=
e T e TESRERG
1&@&}%&?@?%@&@@%»1 PR E
So= k- SRR B =[] I T
FIRE R EAE ), (BI8) S BIEHBE -

iR =

e (B ) TERREBE_ZE =K
—E-_—_F+-_A=+—HLIEFERMEMRK

e o
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ -BERRERE
Furniture
Office and
equipment fixtures Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TH&T TH&T FETT
Cost 24N
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, HR-ZT-_—_F—HF—H"
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 =50 miesg e = I = - =)
—EZ=F—-H—-BHK
= -=%+—"F=F—-H 537 572 1,109
Accumulated depreciation 2RI E
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-__F—H—H 536 572 1,108
Provided for the year FREE 1 - 1
At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 R_Z_—_F+_-_A=+—H
and 31 December 2023 —E_=F—A—8BK
—E_=f+=ZA=+—H” 537 572 1,109
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2023 RZTE_=F+-_F=+—8H = - —
At 31 December 2022 R—E-_—_F#+=-_HA=+—~8” - - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFE

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS EREEE
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FEHEEE

Leased
properties
HEYX
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2022 R-—ZTE-_—_F—H—H 486
Depreciation e (284)

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZEZZF+=-A=+—HEK
—ET-_=%—H—H 202
Depreciation e (202)
At 31 December 2023 R=—ZB=-_=5+=-A=+—8H —

Lease liabilities of approximately nil (2022: HK$208,000)
are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
approximately nil (2022: HK$202,000) as at 31
December 2023.

Depreciation expenses FAEEENTESER
on right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABENF S
(included in finance costs) (B AREBA)

Expenses related to short term lease EREHIFAE R 2 F X

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in
note 32(b).

During the year, the Group leased an office for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 2 years, lease terms were negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applied the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract was
enforceable.

RZEZ=F+-_A=+—H BE¥ERHA
EBENT (T = =4 :208,000% )
FEBNEREEENT (ZE ==
202,000/ 7T ) °

2023 2022
—EgE-= ===

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT &

202 284

4 18

88 -

HERS R BENFMARGSSHNMZE
32(b) °

RAFER R EHE—M#DEARN
BE - REARNETRSMET LA
%&M% EHRE AR S ETRER
Rt -AEBETREHRRTERT
HENBREEN RAANBEYER
AHTRHINTHR -
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e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

19.

FERAEEE (&)
(b) HEAE
Present value of

Minimum lease minimum lease

payments payments
BEHEEHRE BEAENERE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-z=f —Z - —E-=f —Z—-—
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THER FAT FHERT FTHET
Within one year —FR - 212 - 208
Less: Future finance charges B RIS E A N/A N/A
- (4) TEH TiEA
Present value of lease obligations HEEMFRE - 208 - 208
Less: Amount due for settlement A 1218 A A S ER
within 12 months JE I 5B
(shown under current liabilities) (ERBaETER) - (208)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months

12{8 A 14 21 8 &0 FE 14 508

The weight average incremental borrowing rate
applied to lease liabilities is 5% for the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022.

All finance lease payables are denominated in HK$.

BE_Z_=ZFkR=-Z=-_=_F+=A
—+—BLFEEAREEGENMEF
) 3 8 8 S K B5% o

MEREMEERNRBEGANETTE

20. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 20. HuEWHRIE RERFBENLFHE

2023 2022

:E:E —_=__
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Tl FET
Other deposits Hitizs 54 54
Prepayments SRR 284 737
338 791

The financial assets included in the above balances are non-
interest bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand and
relate to receivables for which there was no recent history
of default and past due amounts.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
provision for impairment were made for 12m ECL on the
balances of other deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+=-A=+—HLEFE

LOAN NOTES 21. BHR=E
Impairment % of total
Subscription Interest  loss recognised Carrying assets of the
Issuer Date amount receivables  during the year amount Company
REFERER hEAREE
BITA =g REER 1 10%1) -\ WRESE REE #AERIL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL THL THEL THL
Yun Kang Data Technology (Shanghai) 31 December 2023
Company Limited* (“Yun Kang’) (‘LN1") “E-=4+-A=t-H - = = = =
ERGEENR (LB BRAR ([ER]) 31 December 2022
(T8x5#51]) “Z--%+=-A=+-H 20,000 118 125 18,995 14.19%
D5 Investment B.V. (“LN2") 31 December 2023
D5 Investment B.V ([E5 Z1#52]) —E-=%+-R=+—H - - - - -
31 December 2022
“F--4+=-A=1+-H 30,000 903 307 30,515 22.79%
Total 31 December 2023
Fak ZR-=f+t=-R=+-H - - - - -
31 December 2022
—E--E+ZA=1+—H 50,000 1,021 432 49,510 36.98%

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
had subscribed HK$ denominated loan note (the
“LN1”) of principal value of HK$20,000,000 issued by
an independent third party which is a private entity
established in the PRC, Yun Kang, which is principally
engaged in applying deep learning and artificial
intelligence to analyse the big data for application and
provide clinical diagnosis, with maturity period of three
years from dates of issue. LN1 bears fixed interest
at 6% per annum and is measured at amortised
cost. During the year ended 31 December 2023, LN1
was served as the consideration in exchange for
listed securities of approximately HK$22,198,000, as
disclosed in note 22, which constitutes a disposal of
LN1, and resulting a gain on disposal of approximately
HK$2,841,000 recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

BE-—Z-_ETE+-_A=+—BHItEE"
AEBEERBEETLERER([ERER
1]) &A% {&{E /520,000,000 7t © B — [
RAEBKN LML EEBERBYE=H (&
R EEREBFEEBERALIZTERAR
24T R B LA DN DA FE R 3P 4R L BG R 22 )
BT MBETHHRBAIFERH - ERER
1% B & F 7 6% 5T B 5| B & I% # 35 5K
rtgE-BHE—_E-—_=#+-_A=+—H
LEFE EREBIEERE  LBRIRY
22,198,000/ oA ETT AR B % - HEK
HERZRINHE YERHEE T ==
F+_A=T—HALFEEREBBEZNH
£ Iz #492,841,0007% T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-_T =

21.
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=EE+ZRA=+T—RHBIFE

LOAN NOTES (Continued)

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
had subscribed HK$ denominated loan note (the
“LN2”) of principal value of HK$30,000,000 issued by
an independent third party, D5 Investment B.V., which
is a private entity incorporated in the Netherlands
and principally engaged in storage service, with
maturity period of two years from dates of issue.
LN2 bears fixed interest at 3% per annum and is
measured at amortised cost. During the year ended 31
December 2023, LN2 was served as the consideration
in exchange for listed securities of approximately
HK$31,350,000, as disclosed in note 22, which
constitutes a disposal of LN2, and resulting a gain on
disposal of approximately HK$495,000 recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2023.

21.

EREE (&)

(if)

BE-_Z-_—F+-_RA=+—RHIFE"
REBFBCRBELERER ([EREER
2]) K& {E1E 430,000,000 7T AL
% =7 D5 Investment B.V. (HE A&
ML AABEE T EREERRSE)
BT RN ETHHEMFEIH-E
REE21LZ3% MEEFF R EF B I
REHEKNATFE - BEZTE_=F+=H
=t BLEFE EXREBR2EERE"
A2 EY 4931,350,00078 JT Y _F T A 5] 38 &
(PRt sF22 # 58) - HEREHEREE
2NHE WEBREBEE-_ZT_=F+=-A4
=T ALFEBERSBERNEERZEL
495,000/ 7T ©

2023 2022

—E=-= =3 AT
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FERT &
Loan notes EREE - 50,000
Interest receivables JE U R B - 1,021
Loss allowance E B - (1,511)
At 31 December e et =] - 49,510
Less: current portion R BNEAER 9 - (49,510)

Non-current portion SEBN BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFE

LOAN NOTES (Continued) 21. EREE (&)
Movement for impairment losses REEBEZEH
2023 2022
—EZ=HF Sl S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 1,511 2,390
Derecognised upon disposals HERBKIEER (1,511) (1,311)
Provision made for the year FARE - 432
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H - 1,511
The carrying amount of the loan notes approximates to its EXEBRNEESEERAEAAE - EEER

fair value. Details of its credit risk are set out in note 6(c).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is

the carrying amount of the loan notes.

b B E NI EE6(c) ©

RB|EB RAEER
[k

A BERFEENR

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 22. BAREREZRIENERMEE
2023 2022
—E-= ZES T
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Listed securities: EWES:
Equity securities — Listed in Hong Kong BmESH -RESLT 12,197 19,582
Equity securities — Listed in the United EamEs - NEBE ([EE]) £/
States (“U.S.”) 140,004 10,175
152,201 29,757
Unlisted equity securities FEmEREH 20,105 24,445
172,306 54,202
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R B EmR M
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+_A=+—HLEE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Notes:

At the end of the reporting period, details of the Group’s major

equity securities are as follows:

Proportion
of investee’s
Stock name As at 31 December capital owned
EER
REDNF
REEH R+=ZA=t-H BRI
Listed equity securities
LHERES
Hong Kong
b
Tencent Holdings Limited (i) 2023 0.00%*
Te 2R A R 2 A (i) —EZ=F
2022 0.00%*
—E--F
Alibaba Group Holding Limited (ii) 2023 0.00%*
W2 EE S EERER A A (i) —E-=F
2022 0.00%*
g
BYD Company Limited (iii) 2023 0.00%*
b 353 8% (2 IR 2 7 (i) —E-=f
2022 N/ATNE A
&
CMOC Group Limited (iv) 2023 0.00%*
REER)EEEBRABRAF(v) —T-=
2022 N/AT A
—3-cF
United States
£
Readen Holding Corporation 2023 8.33%
(“Readen”) (v) =i s
Readen Holding Corporation 2022 8.33%
([Readen |) (v) = =
Winchester Holding Group (vi) 2023 1.05%
—F-=f
2022 1.05%
&
Sante Technology Holdings Inc. 2023 23.44%
(“Sante”) (vii) T =
Sante Technology Holdings Inc. 2022 2.70%
([Sante ) (vii) S
Luduson G Inc. (Luduson) (viii) 2023 2.04%
—E-=F
2022 N/A 7 iE A
—T-—
Unlisted equity security
FLrERES
LNPR Group Inc. (‘LNPR”) (ix) 2023 7.02%
LNPR Group Inc. ([LNPR ) (ix) —E==
2022 7.02%
CE——

* Less than 0.01%

Cost

BA
HK$°000
TET

5,405

13,796

1,263

500

3,111

N/ARiE A

2,478

N/A TN iE

12,046

12,046

20,966

20,966

29,598

2,400

32,000

N/A i A

24,445

24,445
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22. EBRARERERRIIENEREE

( II‘E )
Wit -

RBEEMR AEEATERRIFNFE

Market
value

mHEEE
HK$'000
TET

5,021

14,395

1,278

500

3,216

N/ATiE A

2,191

N/ATER

6,692

6,692

69,888

542

43,680

2,940

17,040

N/A & A

20,105

24,445

Net assets/
(liabilities)
attributable to
the investment

REEEEE
BE/ ()
HK$'000
THL

3,830

858

293
2,113
N/A 13 A

9,584

N/A T

4,474

9,941

942

N/AT &

305

(123)

£7720.01%

Accumulated fair
value gains/(losses)
on investment
recognised in the
profit and loss
during the year
REFEER
REBERNERZ
RERAFAAE
i/ (B8)
HK$'000

TR

(385)

1,092

(143)

105

N/ATER

(287)

N/ATER

(3,346)

69,346

(34,490)

13,472

540

(14,960)

N/A T B

(4,340)

-

% of total
assets of the
Company

ADNAEE
BENEDL

2.47%

10.75%

0.63%

0.37%

1.58%

N/ATER

1.08%

N/ATER

3.30%

5.00%

34.42%

0.40%

21.51%

2.20%

8.39%

N/ATER

9.9%

18.26%



22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Dividends of approximately HK$697,000 (2022: HK$219,000) was
recognised in consolidated profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2023.

Except for investment in LNPR, Luduson, Readen and Sante are

held by a subsidiary of the Company, all of the above investments

are directly held by the Company.

The Group held financial assets at FVTPL of approximately

HK$172,306,000 (2022:

HK$54,202,000), representing

approximately 84.87% of the Company’s total assets (2022: 40.5%).

Notes:

(M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Tencent Holdings Limited, incorporated in Cayman Islands,
is principally engaged in the provision of Value-added
Service (“VAS”), FinTech and Business Services and Online
Advertising services.

Alibaba Group Holding Limited, incorporated in Cayman
Islands, provides the technology infrastructure and marketing
reach to help merchants, brands and other businesses to
leverage the power of new technology to engage with their

users and customers and operate in a more efficient way.

BYD Company Limited (“BYD”), incorporated in the PRC,
principally engaged in the manufacture and sales of
transportation equipment. BYD is also engaged in the
manufacture and sales of electronic parts and components
and electronic devices for daily use. BYD’s products include
rechargeable batteries and photovoltaic products, mobile
phone parts and assembly, and automobiles and related
products. BYD mainly conducts its businesses in the PRC, the
US and Europe.

CMOC Group Limited (“CMOC”), incorporated in the
PRC. CMOC is mainly engaged in the mining, smelting,
processing and trading of molybdenum, tungsten, copper
and other metals. CMOC operates through six segments.
The molybdenum and tungsten related products business is
engaged in the mining of molybdenum and tungsten ore. The
copper and gold related products operation is engaged in
the mining of copper and gold. The niobium and phosphate
related products operation is mainly engaged in the production
of niobium and phosphate fertilizers. The copper and cobalt
related products business is engaged in the production of
copper and cobalt. The metals trading business is principally
engaged in the sales of metals.

22.

e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+=-A=+—HLEFE

BARERERRIGNEMEE

(%)
REBE-Z-_=F+-A=+—BItFE RNEsiE
7 P RE R IR B #9697,00078 7T (— =& — — 4 : 219,000
BIL) °

% ¥ LNPR - Luduson * Readen % Sante 8% & B A A
RINBARFBAIN KRR EEFE LIFEHRE-

REBEBRBEEAABETABZNEREED
172,306,000 7T ( == = — £ : 54,202,00058 7T ) * 4
IHARRRAEERSL.87% (ZE - —4:40.5%) °

B et -

(i) BREBRERIE RASHBEMKY T8
MERHEIBERS ([VAS]) SRBRREZE
BR 75 Be AR | B 5 AR o

(i) MEEESEEKRARAR REASEHSEM
RS REP  mEREMEERERMERR
EAREHEFE EEAEH MM NE &
EREMEPES YNESHMOANEL -

(i) @M ARRAA ([HaEe]) KA B
R H AR TEREBREOMERHE -
HEETREEFEHRMHREAEFREAENE
BRHE LT HENEMBRAEE B RIENR
Em FTHENMHRAER TEREBER L
DEHETRETE XBERBNRARER -

(iv) BER)IEXEEBROERIR ([FEHEE])
R BEEMAZA AR RGHEEEENER-
HHAREMEBORARK AR NIRES-
R E BN AR R R R 7 - 80 R #540 B
EmEBEFEARGSEANRR -ARESHE
Em&Et =R RE S 0K - % & Bk EE A
BAE M X 21U H 9 M BEAE A A& o 37 ) 4
HREREBSRERARENEE-SBESH X
BIERESBHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued) 22. BAAEREBERERIENEHEE
(#&)
Notes: (Continued) Kiat: (&)
(v)  Readen, incorporated in the United States, a Venture Capital (v) Readen, REBGFMAY ERESBEIE &
Corporation which is active in the Fintech, Online Payment EFXAREFTENRBREECE -AAAH
and E-commerce industries. IT Star Limited, a wholly-owned 2 ZMB A AT Star Limited # 5 Z B & -

subsidiary of the Company, holds this investment.

(vi)  Winchester Holding Group, incorporated in the United States, (vi)  Winchester Holding Group, 743 Bz it p 37 -
is manufacturing of cars in South Africa. FEmMEEERE-

(vii) Sante, incorporated in the United States, SNTE specialises in (vii) Sante - 7 =BT AKX 2 - SNTE 5 P9 1 Bh 22 M
assisting Asian entrepreneurs and high value startups access TERESEBEVECEBBRTORAR LT
the United States capital market through services like RTO ERBEAZHEARAMG LRAEEBINRS
and public listings as well as serving as a “Company Doctor” MG RMTER S EmREPIRME [ AFIE8A]
to clients already listed on OTC and NASDAQ markets. The fR7% - EER AW EE Luduson iEEEB RIZA
directors consider no practical ability to exercise significant AERBEERIRSENEATENETRE -
influence to the relevant activities of Luduson and classified
as FVTPL.

(viii) Luduson, incorporated in the United States, principally engage (viii) Luduson  REBGFMA T FEBREFE T KT
in the business of building and fostering relationships between BEEMASENAYERE 2 HBENERS-

leading influencers and brands.

(ix) LNPR incorporated in the U.S., which is principally engaged (ix) LNPRAZEBEMAKY  EBRELEBHREES-
in online education business. According to the management BLNPRE M [ETH « th P E 1 = sk 7 2 B A A iz
of LNPR, they are seeking listing on “Nasdaq” in U.S. and REM WERERERRRTRFB -ARTH
already submitted the application to the authority in the U.S.. 2 &K E A R)IT Star Limited 5 5218 & °

IT Star Limited, wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,

holds this investments.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, no trading securities of the RZEZ=FR_FT__F+ZA=+—H ~&5£H
Group were pledged to a securities broker to secure margin loan MERSGEFERTELRLL UNEAEEEAD
borrowed by the Group. RESER
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI

Unlisted equity investments designated at
financial assets at FVTOCI
BRE

e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-_Z-_=F+_A=+—HLEE
RAREREMEZEKRRIIENERNE
E

BERBAREREMEE S
SR 2 & R E E R IF BT AR

2023 2022
—E-= —_ZF_-_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
22,241 24,903

On 7 December 2018, the Group had subscribed 20% equity
interest of an Anguilla incorporated private entity Perfect
Path, engaged in gold mining business at a consideration of
HK$18,500,000.

Despite the Group holds 20% of the voting power in Perfect
Path, however, under contractual arrangements, the other
shareholders control the composition of the board of
directors and have control over Perfect Path. The directors
of the Company consider that the Group does not have
significant influence over Perfect Path, and it is therefore
the unlisted equity investments are designated at financial
assets at FVTOCI.

As of 31 December 2023, the fair value of the equity
investments was approximately HK$22,241,000 (2022:
HK$24,903,000), representing approximately 11.0% of the
total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
18.6%).

As mentioned above, the Group neither has control nor
significant influence over Perfect Path and therefore in
assessing the fair value of Perfect Path at the end of
each reporting period, the Group would take into account
the investment strategy of the controlling shareholders of
Perfect Path as well as the determination of the valuation
techniques thereon.

Having carefully considered the uncertainties over the
economic and the operating environment where the gold
mine of Perfect Path locates and operates, the shareholders
of Perfect Path had reached the consensus, to proactively
approach potential buyer in realising the investment of
the gold mine development so benefited by the increasing
of gold price these years so that alternative investment
opportunities can be identified to reduce investment risk due
to uncertainties.

WR-_E—-NF+_AtB KAEBMUKE
18,500,000 JT 73 18 1A &2 == 4 o Bk 32 A9 FL &
H 22 Perfect Path #920% A% 48 - 1t = £ B %
ES

B & 7N & B 15 4 Perfect Path #920% 3= R4 - A
e RIEAENLTY EMREEHEESEMAER
47K - W #2 Fl Perfect Path e "R A EER AR
&£ E ¥ Perfect PathWEE AT E ) FALIEE
MREREETEARANERE M E2E KT
RS REE-

HE-Z-_=fF+-"A=+-—B BEKEA
B A RIEL AE22,241,0008 T (Z T ==
24,903,000 L) * VEAEBE T =_=F+=
A=+ —HBEEMNMM.0% (===
18.6% ) °

a0 SRt - AN 52 B 4 Perfect Path B 458 il
MEE KN E S BT {E Perfect Path
EHREHRNANER  AEE € ZE & Perfect
Path 22 f% i% 32 5 4% & 55 B DA K 48 B8 &9 & (B BT

BE-

K218 % B Perfect Path & 18 BT £ b [ & i b 26
OB DA I B IRIE E KR T E A & - Perfect
Path ) IR R B Rk k- BB EBELE 5 N
BRI EFRIaRNESER RO SER
KE EeADEBEREERS ROTHEE
A =EK NI ERER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-_Z-_=F+_A=+—HLEE

23. RAAERHEMEZERSEIIENESHE
ZE (&)
RAT B AGHERE- R -F-=FR-F-—
F+ZA=+—HHERLEZBAENT:

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI (Continued)

Market approach was used for valuation of the equity
interest. The inputs into the valuation model as at 31

December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

Perfect Path
Perfect Path

Subscription date

RiEAH

Total number of shares held

P R 17 42 85

Subscription price

REBE

Proportion of investee’s capital owned
FEERRERAEARLE

Dividend income received during the year
F 1 BT ICER AR B 1A

Net assets attributable to the investment
REEHLEETHE

Fair value losses recognised during the year
AEENEROAAEEE

Discount of lack of control

R = PR 2 A R

Gold resource contained
2ENESER

% of gold price

HEEBERAST

Cost of disposal

2023
—EC-=

7 December 2018

—E-N\fF+=AtH

200,000
200,000
HK$18,500,000
18,500,00058 T
20%

20%
HK$25,194,000
25,194,000 T
(HK$2,662,000)
(2,662,00058 7t)
20%

20%

8.6 ton

8.6/

6.5%

6.5%

0.3% of fair value

of the equity interest

HE KA
Valuation methodology
R DDz

Fair value performed by:

RAEREHEE:
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RH#E D AEN.3%

Market Approach
miEE

Access Partner Professional

Services Limited

TREEEREERAT

2022
e —

7 December 2018
—E-N\E+ZAtA
200,000

200,000
HK$18,500,000
18,500,000/ 7T

20%

20%

HK$25,219,000
25,219,000/ 7T
(HK$642,000)
(642,000 7T)

20%

20%

8.6 ton

8.6/1F

8.80%

8.80%

0.3% of fair value

of the equity interest
FR#E X 7B #90.3%
Market Approach
5%

Access Partner Professional
Services Limited

BRBEXRBERALA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. DUE FROM SECURITIES BROKERS

25.

Amounts due from securities brokers represent deposits
placed with securities brokers for the trading of listed
investments which are unsecured, bearing interest at 0%
to 0.01% (2022: 0% to 0.01%) per annum and repayable
on demand. No ageing analysis is disclosed in respect of
amounts due from securities brokers. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, an ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the Group’s business nature.

24,

e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+=-A=+—HLEFE

FE W 3 25 R A2 7RO
RURBSELERBARAR S ETHRE M FRE
BRRENER HREEA 0% £0.01%

TECTF 0% E0.01% ) WFENRGFER R
78 R BSRAEE - W M Bt R R RE 5 AR A2 R
BREOM -ARRIEZTRR BERAKER
EHUEE Rk LEBINMEE-

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25 HitERRRESEM
2023 2022
—E=-= SRes = — 4=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Other payables and accruals HiEN R RETEA 2,437 1,203
Unclaimed dividend payables iH) 7R SH HR A FE 19 AR 2 4 4
2,441 1,207
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

26.

27.

140 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED "B XS #ZERAER A T

PROMISSORY NOTES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had two (2022:
two) promissory notes outstanding to two (2022: two)
individuals who are independent parties to the Group with
an aggregated principal value of HK$13,500,000 (2022:
HK$13,500,000). These promissory notes bear interest
at rates ranging from 6.5% to 8% (2022: 6.5% to 8%) per
annum and are due for repayments ranging from 3rd months
to 15th months (2022: 15th months to 27th months) at the
end of Reporting Period.

On initial recognition, the fair value of promissory notes
issued by the Company were determined based on the
present value of the contractual stream of future cash
flows discounted at rates ranging from 6.55% to 7.96% per
annum. The discount rates are determined with reference to
the yield rate with credit rating and duration similar to the
promissory notes.

The details of the promissory notes for the year are set out
below:

26.

AT E
M-B-=F+-_A=+—B A2 AEMA
—E I MEB)BURAEENA TN
N ZEZ_F - WMHO)AEEANTE A48
813,500,0007% 7t ( == = — 4F : 13,500,0007%
TT) e RMIREHKR  ZEANEZN F6.5% £8%
TE 4 :6.5%E8%) FARA L ERT
HEANFIEAARIEA(ZE_—_F:15(@ A
227 A) »

MNEERE ARABTHANERIAEBRE
B F6.55% £7.96% FH XK HNRARR

g

=

TEANRMNREET BEX2ERLAN
ENEEFNRMPARNBERERE -

=

REABRARNEOFEHIIMT :

2023 2022
—E_= — ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT THET
At 1 January Rn—HA—BH8 14,162 20,223
Imputed interest charged W EREY (& F B 1,029 1,964
Redemption during the year F A FE o] - (6,420)
Interest paid during the year FAZBFE (856) (1,605)
At 31 December e — A == 5 14,335 14,162
Less: Amount due within one year classified & : R —FREHNESE  2EA
as current liabilities mBBE (4,335) (662)
Amount due over one year classified as R—FEINPHEE DEA
non-current liabilities JEME) B E 10,000 13,500
DEFERRED TAX 27. EEBIIE

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$303,529,000 (2022:
HK$357,785,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The unrecognised tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

RBEEAR AEEBRIBHREABED
303,529,000/% 7T (=& = — 4 : 357,785,000/%
7T ) AT 4 85 R SR I o el 1 R 2R B RO R AT
BRI AR ELREBEBRERRERBAEE-
N HEE R O L 755 S 18 T A SR R A A 8 o
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e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+=-A=+—HLEFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B
Number of shares Amount
ROEE <8
HK$'000
FAT
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at R-_ZE-_-4—fF—8"
1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, —“E-—_F+-A=+—8"
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 ZE=F—-A-Bk
“E-=%+-F=+—HH
SRRMEE0. 1S T T B 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at RZE-_——A—BHEREE
1 January 2022 0BT ERERK 431,672,220 43,167
Issue of shares on placement (note i) e &R BT (HTati) 86,334,444 8,634
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—HK
31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 —E-=E5—-A-HHEREE
0.1 TH) & iR 518,006,664 51,801
Issue of shares on placement (note ii) B & B 21T AR 1D (AT atii) 86,334,444 8,633
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at R-Z-_=F+_A=+—HHEK
31 December 2023 E{E0. 18 L) L B 604,341,108 60,434

Notes:

()

On 13 June 2022, the Company and a placing agent (“Placing
Agent A”) entered into a placing agreement (“Placing
Agreement A”) in respect of the placement of 86,334,444
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at a price of HK$0.218
per share under general mandate, to not less than six
placees who are independent third parties to the Group (the
“Placement A”). On 4 July 2022, the Company and Placing
Agent A entered into a supplementary placing agreement to
(i) extend the long stop date of the Placing Agreement A; (ii)
extend the expiry date to procure placees under the Placing
Agreement A; and (iii) revise the placing price from HK$0.218
per share to HK$0.264 per share. The Placement A was
completed on 19 July 2022.

The net proceeds from the Placement A amounted to
approximately HK$22,619,000 after deducting expense of
approximately HK$173,000, approximately HK$8,634,000
and HK$13,985,000 were credited to share capital and share
premium respectively upon the issue of the new shares. The
anticipated net proceeds from the Placement A would be
utilised for investment in the listed and/or unlisted securities
in the aggregate amount of approximately HK$10,000,000,
repayment of short term loan and payment of interest in the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$6,100,000 and the
remaining balance would be used as the Group’s general
working capital.

Hrat -

RZZE-_—_FRNA+=H AQAAEEFEER
B([EREREBADITIEEHE ([REHBE
Al) RABBERTLRANEBERA (BEAERE
BIE=F)IRE—REEUNTR0.218BLE
1% Bt 586,334,444 % T §x E {H0.178 T &9 3 38 A%
([REFBEA]) -R-TBE-_—&F#+AWA &2
AHEREERBAGTLMARE R UNH)ER
BEEBZANKRILER: I\ BREEEHBALTE
8 A A BE A JEm B 88 0 K (ifi) B Bc & B 15 R 0.218
BT EBRAEZT0264B TER -BLEFBAR
—E-—F+tATNABEK-

R B 2 #49173,00008 T8 - BB E=EARS
FRIE SRR 49 522,619,000/ T - P HT AR B 1T RS

8,634,000/% 7T [ 13,985,0007% 7t 7 Bl 5+ A R% 2
B (5% (B - Bl 5 ETEATEH T3 R ESFEH

42 %8 #9/310,000,00058 T #5 AR £ &5 3E
EHEHFEZE  #%46,100,0007 7T #5 A 1 &
ERHEREMNE B TIASKBERASEE —
BB AN o
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B

BB =+ _-_A=+—HILEE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

142 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED "B XS #ZERAER A T

Notes: (Continued)

(i) On 26 June 2023, the Company and a placing agent (“Placing
Agent B”) entered into a placing agreement (“Placing
Agreement B”) in respect of the placement of 86,334,444
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at a price of HK$0.200
per share under general mandate, to not less than six
placees who are independent third parties to the Group (the
“Placement B”). The Placement B was completed on 14 July
2023.

The net proceeds from the Placement B amounted to
approximately HK$17,102,000 after deducting expense of
approximately HK$165,000, approximately HK$8,633,000
and HK$8,469,000 were credited to share capital and share
premium respectively upon the issue of the new shares.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
capital structure of the Group comprises all components of
shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debts, redemption of existing debts or selling assets
to reduce debts. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Group receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25%
limit throughout the year. As at 31 December 2023, 88.82%
(2022: 87.55%) of the shares were in public hands.

28. B ()

Bet: (&)

(i) RZFTZ=FANAZ+ A FAEEHEEER
B([REREBDIIVEEHHE (EEHBE
Bl) REBUANLPRANBERA (ARER
BNE=F)IRE—REEAER0.200% T E
& B2 586,334,444 T IR E E0. 1B o) L @ Ik
([EEFEB]) BEEFEBR T -_=F+
A+mAE =k -

RN B X 4165,0008 0% BB & EBB A5
FRIEHEE 49 7517,102,00058 7T - AT AR B 1T RS -
498,633,000 Jt & 8,469,000/ 7T /- Bl &5 A &
2N B2 B 17 S 1 o

AEEEREARNESABBAERBEEER
RIEHZETE REASEERFELLE I
REREKEARENRRLEF AEEHE X
EEAECRE R T RAK -

AEERRERESCHNARESEEANBEBEN
Bk KEBREAEB AEEEEBAI TR
B BITHBROEBROEENAREITHES B
EREEERHELEENRKES KEEHH
BERREE NBE_SE-_=EKR_T -
FE+-_A=+t—HLEFER BEEERHEEZE.
BUR SR W AR L (E & F o

HE—NBAEFIEERER A REBMRERH
FBRZMEmBi EARFERESRDAKRMN
R25% - AEEFAREKROBFLELEBET
FARFRENEARMDESNRE  EETE
FHRBEERTE2%MBRBE-R_E_=F+=
B=+—H 88.82% (=T - _%:87.55%)H)
BOBARFESE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFE

RDTMBARR K F#EER

2023 2022
—E;—-= el T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FET FAET
Non-current assets RBEE
Rights-of-use assets FRAEEE - 202
Investments in subsidiaries B RAFRE 27 27
27 229
Current assets RBEE
Deposits and prepayments e RFBEMRIE 338 371
Loan notes BERER - 18,996
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAREREBZ B%ﬁIJBEZémﬁéF‘ 82,085 26,816
Financial assets at FVTOCI ERARBEREMZERETYERZ
TREE 22,241 24,903
Due from securities brokers JEUR 3B & & 40 X 338 2,224
Amount due from a subsidiary JiE Uy — RS B B A B FXIE 94,603 51,656
Cash and bank balances He RIRITE 7,799 2,046
207,404 127,012
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals EmEMRRESER 2,441 1,207
Lease liabilities HESE - 208
Promissory notes AT E 4,335 662
6,776 2,077
Net current assets RBEEFE 200,628 124,935
Total assets less current liabilities RAEERARBERS 200,655 125,164
Non-current liability ERBERS
Promissory notes AT E 10,000 13,500
NET ASSETS EEFHE 190,655 111,664
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital f&% < 28 60,434 51,801
Reserves ke (a) 130,221 59,863
TOTAL EQUITY 4 FE 5 190,655 111,664
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors R-E_NFE=A -+ \BEEESHERTER -
on 28 March 2024.
Chau Wai Hing Wu Ming Gai
AER 8%
Director Director
EFE EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+_A=+—HLEE

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

(a) Movements in Company’s reserves

RATRMBRRR FEER (R)

B et

(a) UNGIE- L

30. RESERVES
(@) Group

Share Contributed  Financial assets at
premium surplus FVTOCI reserve ~ Accumulated
30(b)i) 30(b) i) 30(b) i) losses Total
BANEREM
2EKETIRN
R A3 5% BB LREERK
Kt =E30(b)(i) Bt 5E30(b)(ii) i 5E30(b)(iii) 2B/ “E
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT THT TAT
At 1 January 2022 R-E-_—%—F—H 49,470 107,918 7,045 (71,805) 92,628
Loss and total comprehensive FREEREZAMATEE
expenses for the year - - (642) (46,108) (46,750)
Issue of shares on placement (note 28) ~ W& (TR (17228 14,158 - - - 14,158
Cost of issuing new shares under REEEETHR KA
placement (note 28) (H:228) (173) - - = (173)
At 31 December 2022 and RZZT-—#+-A=+-HEk
1 January 2023 —Z-=%-A—H 63,455 107,918 6,403 (117,913) 59,863
Profit and total comprehensive ENEFR2EKS/ (FX%)
incomel/(expenses) for the year Fk - - (2,662) 64,551 61,889
Issue of shares on placement (note 28)  WEEBEITR (#/:£28) 8,634 - = - 8,634
Cost of issuing new shares under REEEBRTHR KA
placement (note 28) (Hiz#28) (165) - - - (165)
At 31 December 2023 RZZE-=%+-RA=+—AH 71,924 107,918 3,741 (53,362) 130,221
30. f#f@
(a) &&
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements AEBRBENESBEREEHEHREER R
therein are presented in the consolidated statement H 2K ERREEEDEFRATIR-

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)  Share premium

Share premium represents the amount by
which the issue price of shares exceeds the
par value of those shares and is distributable
to shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed,
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as and when they fall due in the ordinary course

of business.

the
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(b) EHEZMHEERBEN
() BRi#E

e 10 8 48 B 1 3 1T B tﬁu/(—rﬂﬁ

MZHEEZESE XAD

Dk T AR

R 1&?5%5555%‘*“[&1&5 EIHH

& RNRRE
EF'L-Jaﬁ@J,HMEﬂ‘%

REE AR EGE

(k=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+=-A=+—HLEFE

30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ii)  Contributed surplus

(a)

The contributed surplus of the Company
arose as a result of the capital reorganisation
that the entire amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the
Company was reduced to nil and the credit
arising from such reduction be transferred
to an existing account of the Company
designated as the contributed surplus
account of the Company. Thereafter, the
amount approximately HK$200.4 million
standing to the credit of the contributed
surplus account of the Company was applied
in full towards offsetting the entire amount of
the accumulated losses of the Company; and

the par value of each of the issued shares
was reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.10
per issued share by the cancellation of the
paid up share capital of the Company to the
extent of HK$0.90 per issued share by way
of a reduction of capital, such that the par
value of the issued Shares was reduced to
HK$0.10 each. The credit arising from the
Capital Reduction was transferred to the
contributed surplus account of the Company
within the meaning of the Companies
Act and be applied for such purposes as
permitted by all applicable laws and the
Memorandum of Continuance and the Bye-
laws of the Company and as the Board
considers appropriate.

(iii)  Financial assets at FVTOCI/ reserve

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve represents

the cumulative net change in fair value of equity
investments held at the end of the reporting period
and recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for equity instruments in note 4(f)

to the consolidated financial statements.

30. & (&)
(b) FEZMHERBHN (&)
(i) EHEE

(@) ARBEHBHBRERAE
NN, QiR = el o=
ERTHERET LK BRE
HIORFTEL 2 £REREEE
RERBEHBHREZ A QA
BEBRP-H& KNRABEH
BHRZERSEH20048
BEETHAREBBEHEARAD

EMBEABERESE K

(b) FEEURBAL X FHEAR A
BRBAFRE ETRKH0.90
B BEBITROEERS
f% B 217 A% 91.007% T HI R =
010 BB BEITRMHE
{E 37 = 5 10.10% 7T ° B% Z< 4
WETE A 2 ERE R E QR
EENANAREHAKRE T
ERRABBEREERTFEKXN
MEARBIHMAAFRESS

WA E ) A o

(iii) 2T AR A 2 B K s 5 R

EREEF R

BAOREREME2ERRIENS
REERBRRBREEAVBERE
Bt 3E4(f) At T ARA M & 5t
REBNBRESARFTANRERE

MARERFTEEFE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

31. NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on
the Group’s net assets of approximately HK$186,246,000
(2022: HK$118,301,000) divided by the Company’s ordinary
shares in issue of 604,341,108 (2022: 518,006,664) as at 31
December 2023.

32. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2023

(i) Realisation the loan note to listed securities

During the year ended 31 December 2023, LN1
was served as the consideration in exchange for
listed securities of approximately HK$22,198,000,
as disclosed in note 22, which constitutes a
disposal of LN1, and resulting a gain on disposal
of approximately HK$2,841,000 recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, LN2
was served as the consideration in exchange for
listed securities of approximately HK$31,350,000,
as disclosed in note 22, which constitutes a
disposal of LN2, and resulting a gain on disposal
of approximately HK$495,000 recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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31.

32.

BREEFE
BREEFEDNBEBERAEBRR_ZS_=F+=
A=+—B®WEEFELN186,246,000/8 T
(ZZF = —%:118,301,000/8 7T ) B LA K QA 7]
O 31T & @mAN604,341,10808 (= — — 4
518,006,664 % ) st & 15 »

REREREBRME

(a) EEHFREXRS
BE-Z2-_=f+-A=t+-HLEE

() HEXEZELL ETES
BE_T_=F+-_A=+—81
FE BREBIWENRE LRI
#922,198,000/8 L/ £ #& 5 - a0
B sE22FT # B5 - H A ¥ B R E A1
MEE TEHFHEE T _=—F+=
A=+ HLEE®ERABEZNE
€ U825 492,841,000/ 7T °

HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—AHL
FE O BERER2FEERE AR
#931,350,000/8 T By E T & %+ s a0
MisE22FTH B8 HBE N H ERE K2
MHE TERHEE-_T_=F+=
A=+ HLEFE®RRAEBNE
& I35 49495,0007%8 T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+=-A=+—HLEFE

32. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 32. MEREHRERME (E)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) EREIBHELENEBNEE
financing activities
The table set forth below is the detail changes in the TERAASEAREZDELENBEES
Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities, HE RRERRERIFREH - RME
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities EEHHEEERENECLIARRERR
arising from financing activities are those for which ERERAEESRERERERIERNR
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified BEREEHNHERNENZETAEE-

in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.

1 January Interest 31 December
2023 Cash flows Addition charges 2023
Z8CZF S :3
-B-8 ReRE "E FEMX +=R=t-H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TER TR TR TR
Lease liabilities (note 19(b)) ~ TEAE (#iZ19(b)) 208 (212) - 4 -
Promissory notes (note 26) BNE (Hi26) 14,162 (856) - 1,029 14,335
14,370 (1,068) - 1,033 14,335
1 January Interest 31 December
2022 Cash flows Addition charges 2022
“E-CF “E--
-A-f RBeng HE MERX TZR=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR FRL THER TR
Lease liabilities (nofe 19(b)) REEE (Hit190) 490 (300) - 18 208
Promissory notes (note 26) AR (H1i26) 20,223 (8,025) = 1,964 14,162
20,713 (8,325) - 1,982 14,370
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE

32. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of
cash flows for lease comprise the following:

32.

REREREBRWE (H)

(c) HERERHAHE

FAERERERTABEHENRENT

2023 2022

—EBC-=F —E-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Within operating cash flows KEBHEREN 92 18
Within financing cash flows MERSREN 208 282
300 300

These amounts relate to the following: ZEeRENTSEERR:

2023 2022
—E=-= 75 = 4=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Lease rental paid BEfNHEE 212 300
Short term lease paid B EHEE 88 =
300 300
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

On 29 February 2016, the Company entered into an
investment management agreement (“Investment
Management Agreement”) with Tiger Securities Asset
Management Company Limited (“Tiger Securities”),
pursuant to which Tiger Securities has agreed to
act as the investment manager of the Company and
to provide investment management services to the
Company for a period of two years commencing from 1
March 2016 and expiring on 28 February 2018.

According to the Investment Management Agreement,
Tiger Securities shall be entitled to a management fees
of 0.5% per annum on the net asset value as per the
management account of the Company of the preceding
month with an annual cap of HK$1,800,000.

On 24 November 2016, the Company entered into
a supplemental investment management agreement
(“Supplemental Investment Management Agreement”)
with Tiger Securities, pursuant to which, with effect
from 1 January 2017, management fees as set out
in the Investment Management Agreement shall be
changed from 0.5% per annum on the net asset value
as per the management account of the Company of the
preceding month with an annual cap of HK$1,800,000
to 1% per annum on the net asset value as per the
management account of the Company of the preceding
month with an annual cap of HK$2,980,000. Save as
above changed, all other terms and conditions set forth
in the Investment Management Agreement shall remain
unchanged, in full force and effect.

On 28 February 2018, the Company entered into a
renewal agreement with Tiger Securities to renew
the investment management services period from 28
February 2018 to 28 February 2019.

On 28 February 2019 and 28 August 2019, the
Company entered into renewal agreements with
Tiger Securities respectively, to renew the investment
management services period from 28 February 2019 to
31 August 2019 and further extended to 29 February
2020.

e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—HIFE

33. BEH?‘U‘J‘KE%

(a)

RZB-—X"FZAZ+NA AQFHER
RRFAEEBRBBRQAR(IZREF])

RIVREERRE ([REEERR]) &
I REBFELRBETEARRZRE
EEANURABRRD ﬂkh&ééﬁ%%'
H-_ZE—RNE-ZA—ARAHREE_T
—N\NF-_A=-t+/\HEmM-

REREEEHZ FTrEHFAUESAR
AEHE-—EANEERREPNEEFE
AEEF05%CERE FHEELERA
1,800,0007% 7T °

R-B-—ARFt+—H-_tHB - ARFHE
FnErFUAAREERHE ([fHX
BREEEmZ]) B - A_F—tF—
A—BE REEEGZAMBIERE
RAARAREHS E—EANEERBETH
BEFEFTETF05% F@E2F ERA
1,800,000/ 7T AR R B ES E—1EA
MERRETNEEFENFESTF1% 8
7% £R /&2,980,0007% 7T ° B £ it 2k &)
S REE ﬁ% W%ﬁZ%ﬁE@ﬁﬁ
Mgt T~8 RETRROKRER-

R=ZZFE—NEF_A=_F+N\B ' AARHZFE
RHE SR VBB NS ’%iﬁf’&ﬁaﬁﬂ 7%
HEA =T - NF-_A=FTNBE=Z
—NFEZA=Z+NB-

—nWE-A=Z+N\BERZ=ZZE—NF
NAZ+NB ARAD R EFEZEFT
VEAhGE ERAREEERBHMEBAZ
E—NF-_A=-tN\HEZZ—hENA
=+ —HUE—SERE_FT_TF_A
—+hAB-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-_T =

=EE+ZRA=+T—RHBIFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

150 COCOON HOLDINGS LIMITED "B XS #ZRAER A T

(Continued)

With effective from 1 September 2019, management
fee to Tiger Securities shall be changed from 1% per
annum on the net asset value as per the management
account of the Company of the preceding month to
0.8% per annum on the net asset value as per the
management account of the Company of the preceding
month with unchanged annual cap at HK$2,980,000.

On 28 February 2020, 7 December 2020, 16 December
2021, 21 November 2022 and 21 November 2023, the
Company entered into several renewal agreements
with Tiger Securities respectively, to renew the
investment management services period to 31 August
2024 and change the annual cap to HK$660,000.

Mr. Wu Ming Gai, an executive director of the Company,

is a director and responsible officer of Tiger Securities.

The management fees and incentive fee paid and
payable to Tiger Securities are as follows:

FEEH:
=gk

Tiger Securities:
Management fees

33. BBARZ (&)

(a)

(&)

BE-_Z—NFNLA— B ZTEEENF
ERBEER L EAARRREERERE
EFEMPEXRALE—FEALARRER
REFREEFENS 2F LETE.
113 42,980,000/ 7t °

RZZEZEF-_A=+N\RB ZZT=FF
+=ZAtB - ZZE=_—F+=-A+xA"
B _F+—AZ+—HBERZE-_=F
+—AZ+—H ARFADHEREES
RIATEERS EEKREETERY
ME_Z-_mMFNA=+—H8 FTEXZE
£ PR %660,0005 7T °

ARARIATEEHRELLERTRESFH
EERABEAR-

ENfEENFEEEFNERERESNT

2023 2022

—E=-= S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT THET
774 535

The above management fees paid or payable to Tiger
Securities are continuing connected transactions
(“CCT”) as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
but regarded as de minimis transaction pursuant to
Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules as the CCT had
fulfill the relevant requirements.

Remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group representing amounts paid to the Company’s
executive directors is disclosed in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FHRENSENRRESNEREB L™
HRABMAEMRAENKBEBER S ([
BHERS]) AM BELHHRAE
14A.76(1) & ERFERERFTE A B
BE Bt HRE /T A &KE#RRKF
R 5

AEETEZERASNTFMALAMER
RME15IRBEAARBATEEINN



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. SUBSIDIARIES

35.

36.

37.

38.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Principal activities and

Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation place of operation

34,

WEARER 2 AL L 3t B TEXBREXLE

IT Star Limited* British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong
IT Star Limited* EBRIES REBR/ B

Studio V Limited* Hong Kong Investment holding in Hong Kong
Studio V Limited* B0 RERKR/ B

* Shares held directly by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries issued any debt securities at the
end of the Reporting Period.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As of the approval date on these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no significant events after the
reporting period which need to be disclosed.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2022: Nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to
the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% (2022: 5%) of the
salaries and wages, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 (2022: HK$30,000) and vest fully with
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March
2024.

35.

36.

37.

38.

e M| RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE_Z_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE
Bt A Al
RZB_=ZRZZB__F+_A=+—Hz*x
EWBARFENT:

Particulars of issued

share capital Interest held

BRIREFE liig=d 3+
2023 2022
—EC-ZF —E__F
1 ordinary share of US$1 100%* 100%*
1REEIET . AR
HK$10,000 100%* 100%*
10,000/ 7T

* RRBEEFE 2B -

RBERAR SHBRARALERTEMNELE

%,
BEWPRER

ERAMBREAMERS AEELEEXR
==

=
BEMREBAATHE -

HREE
RZBE_=F+ZA=+—B KAEELELE
MBEBASIAEB(ZZT__F &)

EBIRBEFEHE

REERE CatlERBETEIED) AES
EEBB IR —BERFNEATESE (8
Bestdll) AEERFWRFEN%S (=
—F 5% ) MBESHEER FAEBAR
430,000/ 7T (=& = = 4 : 30,0008 7T) A& F
R EEERNTBHEEES -

RERTHREMBRE

EEgR_ZE_NE=A TN NBHEREKE
BITHEAMBRE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFHBEME
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLFE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—T-hE ZT-FF —T-_—F T —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FHExT
Results: E 4
Profit/(loss) profit attributable to 7K 2 A1 #E A A JEA
owners of the Company wm Al (E1R) & F (35,361) (4,166) (28,643) (48,079) 53,505
Year ended 31 December
BEt+-HA=+—HLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—T-NF ZETETF —T-_—F —T-_-F ZZBZ-=
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FA T FAT FAET FExT
Assets and liabilities: EEREE:
Current assets MEBEE 110,423 138,921 92,982 133,676 203,022
Total assets BEE 189,821 185,535 168,269 133,878 203,022
Current liabilities mEBE 3,977 2,865 10,158 2,077 6,776
Total liabilities BELE 24,105 22,785 23,866 15,577 16,776
Shareholders’ funds R E 2 165,716 162,750 144,403 118,301 186,246
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